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Phone: 804-330-2471
Fax: 804-330-3054
9100 Arboretum Pkwy
Suite 365
Richmond, VA 23236
www.vabirthinjury.com

www.vabirthinjury.info

February 26, 2007

Bruce F. Jamerson

Clerk of the House of Delegates
House of Delegates

P.O. Box 406

Richmond, VA 23218

Dear Mr. Jamerson:

In compliance with Virginia statute 38.2-5015, paragraph B and 38.2-5016,
paragraph F, please find enclosed a complete report regarding the investments
of the Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Fund and a
copy of our most recent audit.

For the year 2006, the Program’s reserves grew by approximately $25 million
to almost $185 million. Unfortunately, the Program is still considered
actuarially unsound. The Board of Director’s is working hard to correct this
situation. As you may know, a stakeholders group including medical
professions, insurance companies, claimant families and others met several
times last year to begin developing legislative solutions. That group will
resume meeting in the next few weeks.

If you have any questions please feel free to contact our executive director,
George Deebo, or myself.

Sincerely,

eSO o
Ralph Shelman b‘b
Board Chair

Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program

Enc: Performance Report, 2005 Audit
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Room to Run

The U.S. economy fared very well in 2006, with a GDP growth rate of
3.3% for the year, just above trend and slightly ahead of 2005. Growth
slowed over the course of the year, but the extent of the slowdown is
now in question. Concems are focused on the U.S. housing market.

| Feel Good!
With due credit to James Brown, it was hard not to feel good about
returns for the U.S. equity market in the fourth quarter, as all major
economic sectors rose. The broad benchmark Russell 3000 (+7.1%)
experienced its best quarterly result in two years, led by the small cap
Russell 2000 (+8.9%) and the Russell MidCap (+7.7%). Value stocks
bested growth.
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Great Expectations
The Lehman Aggregate advanced 1.24% in the fourth quarter. Asset-
Backed Securities climbed 1.10%, 23 bps above Treasurys. Strong
eamings and robust corporate balance sheets helped Investment Grade
Corporate Credit outperform Treasurys by 61 bps, for a total gain of
1.36%. see page
A Turning Tide?

The NAREIT Equity Index rose 9.5% in the fourth quarter. The
FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Global Real Estate Index advanced 14.0%.
The private side of real estate was up 4.5%, as measured by the
NCREIF Property Index, feeding off the strength of the Oﬁice
sector. @

Rally Gains Steam Overseas
The MSCI EAFE Index (+10.4%) rose sharply in the fourth quarter.
Value (+11.3%) beat growth (+9.4%) yet again during the quarter,

Market

while small cap (+11.7%) retumed to its winning ways versus EAFE.
The MSCI Emerging Markets Index (+17.6%) rocketed higher as
investors flocked to China and Brazil, eager to buy into the secular

growth stories in those markets.

International Yields Up; Dollar Falls

For the fourth quarter, intemational bonds, as measured by the Citi
Non-U.S. Government Bond Index, lost 7 bps, in local ferms. Due to
a falling dollar, the unhedged version of the index advanced 2.09% for
U.S. based investors. Emerging Markets, as represented by the
JPMorgan EMBI Global Diversified Index, climbed 3.81%.
Private Equity Market

Preliminary estimates for 2006 fundraising totaled $215.4 billion in
commitments and 322 new funds. This exceeds the prior record of
$177.9 billion, set at the height of the 2000 bubble. The investment
pace by funds into companies also set an all-time record. Addmonally,
exit activity increased in 2006. !

Hedge Funds Soar on Upside Risk

The median manager in Callan’s Hedge Fund-of-Funds Database
rose 4.68% last quarter, net of fees. With more directional exposure,
the asset-weighted CSFB/Tremont Hedge Fund Index jumped
5.78% in the fourth quarter. Among CSFB/Tremont’s subslrategws

Emerging Markets (+9.12%) led the way. see prge (f

The Bulls Are Running Strong

For the fourth quarter, fund sponsors with more equity exposure came
out on top. The median endowment/foundation (+5.80%) led their
institutional counterparts with an average public equity allocation of
64%. The median Taft-Hartley plan (+5.25%) trailed its peers.
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i Feol Googh

With dus credif 1o James Brown, 8 was hard not jo foal good about raiums
forthe 1.5, equity market in the fourth quarter, s a8 maior scononds saiors
oz, Much of the credif goes & the same Rrces that have been driving the
roarked in the recent past. The Fod's policy on interest rates remained sable
winle job ceation comdinued s sirong gewth. Mon-faon pavrcils zdded
over 400,000 jobe during the guarter and 1.8 million 1obs over the past 12
months. Bguitiss alsn bopefited from declimng o prioes, whish feli bedow
560 per barred for the first dme in pine months.

The brosd benchmark Bassell 3808 (+7.19%) sxperenced i3 bast guarierdy
result i two yoars, jod by the emell cap Buseell 2088 (+8.9%) wnd the
Russpll RHSCap {(47.7%) "Moga-cap” Russell Top 58 {(+7.7%) alac beat
the teead markel. The B&F 388 clinnbed 6,786

Value stocks bested growih agmin, aided by sirong performances in
waditional valee sectors such a3 Fimancials (4719 Poergy (F11.7%0,
Uinliies (+2.59%), RMaterials (FI127%) and industaals {06.9%) Dnving
sesudts for Financials were BEVTS (310 6%}, which coninue 1o benafit from
unabated mvesior demand. fovestment Banks (v12.7%) wers sssisted by

strong earmings resulis from Goldman Ssche (F18.1%) and Merdll Lyndh
{+15.4%,

Erarpy {+11. 7%} bounced back despiis flling epergy pricss and & warmpr-
than-axpested start i winler. The large anergy sompames, Bxxon (+14.790),
Conccofhillips (+21.2%) and Chevron {+14.2%), were again the leaders.
However, anlike the thind guanter, the snusller subsecions were also in the
wiack with Bguipment & Seyvaces riging 3.4% and Urilling up 7.3%
Swong job growdh and conmemer confidence helped Consumex
Duscrmionairies (+30.6%) post ne best quarier in iwo voars. {asinos
{+22.8%), Textles (+15.1%%) and Mediz (+13.4%; all had doubledipit
reurns. Copeurner Siaples (+3.9%) lazead behind, bt ie the only secior ©
have pesitive returns for oach gusrisr in 2086

The geod soonormic news oise ww Industrials (+6.9%) move ug, 2 Alrdines
{+15.8%) bensfited from higher fares wnd lower fugd prices. Asrospace
{+7.7%) advanced oo the nows Hud FedPy was cancdling s Airbus 380
arder and purchasing ten 7775 fom Bosing ($13.7%).

Tedenology (46.4%) advanced, driven by fhe mrospect that Microsoils
{+9.6%) new Vists opsraling svsiem will oreste demand for hardwars
progucis from IBM (19053}, Hewldatt-Packard {+12.5%), Dell (+2.9%) and
Ciseo {+18.9%40) Telccom {+8.4%) staved in the Black, as AT&T {(+10.9%)
- finplized s merger with BellSouth (+11.0%:)

Based on the Russell style mndices, valus-onented stocks aguin trumped
growttrorienmted siocks aoress 2 copitalizadion ranges. T compare vidue
mnd growil, Russell divides dhe copitalization indices fo oraate subseciors of
growih- and value-onented siccks, Among smaller stocky, the Bussell 2068
smail Oap Yalue Index rose 249%, compared o §.8% for se zrowth
coamterpart. I the largs stook arena, the Ruesell 1000 Value Index (47.0%)
bested the Rucsel 1008 Grawth Indes (45 996}
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U.S. EQUITY
Style Median and Index Returns* for Periods ended December 31, 2006
Last Last Last3 Last5 Last 10 Last 15

Quarter Year Years Years Years Years
Large Cap-Broad Style 6.54 14.99 11.48 6.84 9.66 11.56
Large Cap-Growth Style 5.33 7.75 7.91 2.93 7.79 9.82
Large Cap-Value Style 7.65 19.28 13.94 9.22 10.39 1251
Aggressive Growth Style 7.24 9.15 9.43 6.36 8.22 11.42
Contrarian Style 817 19.85 14.33 10.03 H1is 13.54
Core Style 647 15.90 11.69 7.03 9.66 11.56
Yield Style 7.39 20.70 13.92 10.25 10.54 12.40
Russell 3000 7.12 15.72 11.19 717 8.64 10.79
Russell 1000 6.95 1546 1098 6.82 8.64 10.80
S&P Composite 1500 6.77 1534 10.85 6.79 8.83 10.89
S&P 500 6.70 15.79 10.44 6.19 842 10.64
NYSE 847 20.65 14.82 10.14 10.25 11.59
Dow Jones Industrials 7.39 19.04 842 6.81 8.93 12.00
Mid Cap-Broad Style 7.09 13.34 14.07 10.90 12.82 13.74
Mid Cap-Growth Style 6.80 9.57 11.75 7.54 11.49 12.27
Mid Cap-Value Style 7.99 16.97 16.56 14.72 13.74 15.46
Russell Midcap 7.67 15.26 16.00 12.88 12.14 13.35
S&P MidCap 400 6.99 10.31 13.09 10.89 13.47 13.62
Small Cap-Broad Style 8.34 14.60 14.10 12.37 1244 13.13
Small Cap-Growth Style 813 12.43 9.87 7.22 9.14 11.49
Small Cap-Value Style 8.97 18.75 16.33 16.55 14.93 15.51
Russell 2000 8.90 18.37 13.56 11.39 9.44 11.47
S&P SmallCap 600 7.84 15.11 14.99 12.49 11.57 13.24
NASDAQ 7.15 1038 7.15 499 6.95 10.60
Consumer Staples 385 15.13 961 7.50 8.08 8.94
Consumer Discretionary 10.61 16.39 827 5.90 8.44 9.39
Industrials 6.87 15.07 13.04 8.88 9.39 11.50
Energy 11.68 21.34 29.03 19.79 14.33 14.39
Materials 12.66 20.59 13.97 13.21 7.51 9.07
Information Technology 6.43 8.92 4.16 0.80 5.69 10.87
Utilities 9.50 21.73 20.10 10.15 9.00 9.75
Financials 707 19.72 13.16 11.23 12.91 15.87
Telecommunications 8.39 36.93 16.33 2.00 3.62 —
Health Care 1.96 6.78 6.40 2.58 931 —

U.S. Equity Index Characteristics as of December 31, 2006

S&P 1500 S&P500 S&P400 S&P600 Rus3000 Rus 1000 RusMidcap Rus 2000
Cap Range 66446944 1.408-446,944 495-10,623 66-3,660 14-463,636 189-463,636 189-21427 14-3,045
Number of Issues 1,500 560 400 600 2,958 987 784 1,971
% of S&P 1500 100% 88% 8% 4% 100% 91% 26% 9%
Wtd Avg Mkt Cap $89.2B $100.7B $3.8B $1.5B $83.4B $91.3B $8.3B $12B
Price/Book Ratio 28 28 24 24 28 28 27 24
P/E Ratio (forecasted) 15.1 149 16.2 173 157 154 178 209
Dividend Yield 1.7% 1.8% 1.3% 0.9% 1.7% 1.7% 1.4% 1.1%
5-Yr Eamings (forecasted) 12.2% 11.9% 13.8% 16.5% 12.5% 12.2% 13.6% 15.4%

* Returns less than one year are not annualized.
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Lreet Expectatinns!

it was & tale of two halves for de US. fined incoms markets in e fourth
guarter of 2006, as the Lohonan Agoregsie relumed 3 coupontibs +1.24%
Concoms over & herd landing lod wvesiofe 1o andivipate an mmaneai ¢l in
short-barm interest rates and Tugled o spirited Oeiober bord nibv. However,
strpngec-than-expentad data in mid-November fod the muarket to push @t s
expecte tirmaftame for 3 Ped Interest rate o, propelfing a Buvious seti-off in
the bond markst to fumish out the vear Away fiom the markat™s daia
dependent positioning, Ben Bemanke and the FOMO beid the fod Suds mis
stepdy a3 3.25% throughowt e guarter

The December sell-off loff nterest rates ngher aoross 28 matrilies of the
vight ourve. The visld curve relf flalienasd bud remained invered, dignaling
e bond market’s expeciaiion of an inferest rate cutin the second half of nexy
vear After gt was seid and done, the vield on the 10-venr Treasary note

fimiehad only 7 bps higher ot 4 70%. Stongey selling on the short end of the
surve broughi the vield on the Z-vear Treasury up 13 s o 4.31% in ling
wiils hat of the 30-vear note.

oy cnprgy prives ted inflation figures lowss, road raies higher and
Treanuy nflation Proweoted Becusiies down 1.29% in the quaner The regl
viehd of the 10-vear Tressury meremsed 5 bps o 244 over the quprier.
$ta deisling 2 resibions U8, consuner and soms stabilieation in residentisl
redd sstate prices lod spread seciors to vaiperform Treaswrys across the board
1 the fourth quarier. Pive-year swap spreads, reflecting the murket’s appetite
for risk, Hghtenad by @ bpe. The Mortgage seotor (+1.60%) Iad s Lebnwmo
Agpeepate sobsectors fn the fourth quarier, as Hghlening swap spraads and
contrasiing norest yaie volmiliny contrbuted 10 2 redurn of 59 bps over
Treasurss of siosbyr durtion. Tommercisd Moigage-Backed Baowities—
the best porfenming sector of the Lelunan Agereggie m 2006—advanced
1.14% 1n the founth quarter

Azeei-Backed Secwiites climbed 1.10%, 23 bos above Trossuwrys Light
seumnce and 3 sirong Bd from osnoral banls, sesking wield snd
diversification out of Treasws, oveshadowsd 2 declise in sub-prines
bomrower fundamentals.

PO

Swong ssrmngs and robust oorpomie belsnce sheels helped Investment
srade Corporaie Credit owiperipny Treazarve by 81 bys, fov 2 wotal gaim of
3%, Credit spreade over Treasurye grinded tighter, ncbwithsianding their
sdd-vepr lows The opon adiusted sprend of nvestment Grude Cradis
tighiened & bps despile the anwouncement of several recordesetting
Leaveraged Buvowds {LBOs) and the secter™s lofly valugtions.

[oug

e

Reoord issugnes i both the ngh viold and bank loan markeis fusled 2 siving
of pre-popping LBO denls, which sre iypically wiriendly o holders of the
target company’s debe To daie, spreud widendng has been coniained i
oredits named in takeover thmsackions reher ten tha of the oad oredit
Investors condinusd 1o thiret for vield in e fouwth guanier, piling heavily inte
high visld bonds (+4.20%). Credit quality was of Bitle concem & fower rajed
mssugs owtperformed thewr higher quslity peens C8C-rmed names
outperfpoeed BBvated names +6.12% o +3.55%, reapectively, in the
guarisy. The faud-based defndt of bevernge maker LeNahae's did Bide
shange the markets greference for viald over guality. Defandt rafes remained
a¢ higioric Jows on i apmel basis.
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|
U.S. FIXED INCOME
Style Median and Index Returns* for Periods ended December 31, 2006

Last Last Last 3 Last5 Last 10 Last 15
Quarter Year Years Years Years Years
Core Bond Style 1.26 4.5¢4 3.98 5.40 6.48 6.72
Core Bond Plus Style 152 5.03 4.50 582 6.70 7.31
LB Aggregate 1.24 4.33 3.70 5.06 6.24 6.50
LB Govt/Credit 1.04 3.78 344 5.17 6.26 6.57
LB Govt 0.84 348 3.20 4.64 6.01 6.30
LB Credit 134 4.26 381 590 6.55 7.08
Citi Broad Investment Grade 1.25 433 3.79 5.10 6.26 6.55
Extended Maturity Style 0.75 3.11 5.51 7.39 7.87 8.49
LB Gov/Credit Long 1.05 2.71 5.51 7.38 7.72 8.08
LB GovLong 0.57 2.06 551 7.11 7.70 8.05
LB Credit Long 1.59 347 5.50 1.73 7.56 8.00
Intermediate Style 1.13 444 3.22 4.67 5.97 6.21
LB Intermediate Aggregate 1.26 4.58 3.44 4,70 5.97 6.18
LB Gov/Credit Intermediate 1.03 408 2.90 453 5.81 6.05
LB Gov Intermediate 0.89 3.84 262 3.92 5.48 5.73
LB Credit Intermediate 1.27 449 332 537 6.25 6.73
Defensive Style 1.15 4.60 2.84 3.39 5.1 5.45
Active Cash Style 1.27 5.02 312 298 4.59 4.81
Money Market Funds (net of fees) 1.20 4.51 2.65 1.98 345 3.65
ML Treasury 1-3 Year 091 3.97 2.17 2.82 4.69 4.99
90-Day Treasury Bills 1.26 485 3.07 243 381 4.00
High Yield Style 4.07 10.46 8.33 9.77 7.18 9.63
LB HighYield 4.20 11.85 8.49 10.18 6.59 8.44
ML High Yield Master 417 11.66 8.34 9.85 6.86 8.79
Mortgages Style 1.56 5.34 4.32 515 6.50 6.71
LBMRBS 1.60 522 417 4.85 6.16 6.35
LBABS 1.10 470 3.26 445 5.95 6.20
LB CMBS 1.14 473 3.54 6.02 710 —
LB Muni 1.11 4.84 428 5.53 5.75 6.26
LB Muni 1-10 Year 0.73 3.74 277 4.25 4.85 —
LB Muni 3 Year 0.63 3.04 1.90 3.00 4.04 4.45
U.S. Fixed Income Index Characteristics as of December 31, 2006
Yield Modified Adj.  Average % of % of
Lehman Brothers Indices to Worst Duration Maturity LBG/C LB Aggregate
LB Aggregate 534 146 6.96 100.00% 100.00%
LB Govt/Credit 5.16 507 7.69 100.00% 58.80%
Intermediate 5.08 3.60 441 79.96% 47.02%
Long-Term 5.50 16.93 20.76 20.04% 11.79%
LB Govt 489 4.50 6.36 60.76% 35.73%
LB Credit 5.59 593 9.75 39.24% 23.07%
LB Mortgage 5.63 346 6.00 — 35.05%
LB Asset-Backed 5.32 2.77 3.20 — 1.18%
LB Commercial Mortgage 5.36 4.83 5.97 — 4.96%
LB Corp High Yield 7.70 4.43 7.88 — —_

* Returns less than one year are not annualized.




Batty Goire Btearm Oversaas

The MY 4 53 rose sharply i the Huth guaner
building on e pain of e peceding gusnier. a8 Ivestors comdinusd o
foous on sirong gobal growih prospects, sohd earaings msuls and forvent
merper aod scquasiion anhvity. The dollar revessed cousse {-3.3%) and
decined sharply pguinst Ewopoan owrenues (bepefiting U8 -haged
invesiors oonsidersbly), but mamaged to ebe out ¢ shighi 3o sgeing dhe
Sapamess ven. Yabue {+11.3%0) bear growidh 049 vet agmn during the
guarter, while small cap (511.7%) retumned 1o 38 winsing wavs vezsus the
HAPE Inden. The MRECT Fmerging AMarkef Ingdex (+17 6% rocketed
iugher, a8 vestors Hocked 1o Thing snd Brand, sager 1o buy into the secudar
growil vines i thoge markets.

Europe
The BMECT Envepe Index ropsned 11.5% o U8 -hasad tovestors in the

fourth quarter, with drpmatic wezbness in the doller contdbuting over 4.3%
of trat refun. Continued girong 2eonomic growth lod the Buropesn Cenirsl
Bank 0 rwise uvievest refes twice duting te guarier, bolstoning the aure’s
strengil versys the dollar o5 the intersst e gap between the U3, and
Ewrope sarroved sonsideraldy. The Bank of Englend raised interesiates by
4 guarter-paing onoe agaiy, leading 1o 2 5% doctine in the valve of the dollar
versus the pound sterbing. In aildition w the sreneth of Furopean curreriss,
retums wire boosied by loced shaves rallying on e back of vigorous merger
and acquimtion acvity wnd strong resudis o the Telpcomumenoations aooior

Hsin

The MSCE Pacifie Basin Indes climbed 7.9% in the roost recent guantes, 3
sofid rebem, vat 3 considerable dissppointment velative i the other major
regions. fapan (+5.00%} once spuin lageed the hrosder market and was, in
fans, the worgt performing countty in BAFE. In conirast 1o the Baropem
cazvency, the Japansss ven apmually weskened by 0.9% wversus the 105
dollar, as governmnand data suggested thal sconomme meoovery wis a3 on
deheate footing. 45 3 resuly, domestic shams in bamlung and retadl suffered
the weskest porfomnenee, whils expori-orioniad stocks benefited from their
defensive nature 33 wedl ax therr sensitiviy o 8 dodluung ven, Elsewhers,
Arsirahia (+16.2%) and New Zeatand (+21.9%) produced imprasaive refmrns
in their locsd shares a5 well 25 thely oumvencies, a8 mvesiorn femaing
enfiomastic about e gowth vatook In Sose commiries.

. Ernerging Markets

Emerping markets reflied strongly in the lawt guariey of 2006, with the BERCE
Emerging Marvkets Freo Index advancing o whopping 17.6% o US
myesioss. Ching lod the way with 2 repum of S3359%, reflecting posttive
globsd sentivent towsnd the world's fasest prowing large soonomy. A siring
of successfil initial public offerings buoyed invesior enthusiasm. The more
advanced emwrping ecopomiss of Korea (F48%) and Tavwan {(+12.9%)
fagzed, due munly o slunmping ftechnology dhares 85 ovegions fooused
insiend on bavds and raw materials. The best performing region was Lafin
America (+22.1%), haoks i part 1o 20 infevest rate ouf in Bragl (4246555
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INTERNATIONAL EQUITY
Style Median and index Returns* for Periods ended December 31, 2006

Last Last Last3 Last5 Last 10 Last15
Quarter Year Years Years Years Years
Global Style 8.26 22.20 15.20 10.56 934 10.68
Non-U.S. Style 10.35 26.66 2051 16.10 10.39 10.91
Core Style 16.28 26.66 20.19 16.07 10.48 1052
MSCI EAFE-Unhedged 10.35 26.34 19.93 1498 77 7.86
MSCI EAFE-Local 7.04 1646 19.17 8.52 7.10 1.29
MSCI EAFE Growth -Unhedged 240 2233 17.18 12.27 5.07 524
MSCIEAFE Value-Unhedged 1129 30.38 22.64 17.65 10.18 10.39
MSCI World-Unhedged 8.37 20.07 14.68 9.97 7.64 8.69
MSCI World-Local 7.01 15.55 14.19 7.14 7.49 8.49
MSCIAC World ex-U.S.—Unhedged 11.21 27.16 21.81 16.87 8.59 8.55
MSCI AC World-Unhedged 9.16 21.53 16.14 11.31 8.20 9.19
Pacific Basin Stvle 8.77 14.56 18.46 16.37 4.47 6.73
Japan Style 4.70 414 16.30 14.64 671 472
Pacific Rim Style 16.23 33.96 24.46 21.03 6.01 10.30
MSCI Pacific-Unhedged 7.93 12.20 17.86 15.51 3.20 3.22
MSCI Pacific-Local 7.49 1133 2047 11.97 3.13 2.66
MSCI Japan—Ushedged 5.01 6.24 15.61 13.51 2.15 1.55
MSCI Japan-Local 598 7.26 19.77 11.36 242 1.24
Europe Style 11.78 33.36 2136 15.04 12.46 13.24
MSCI Europe-Unhedged 1146 33.72 20.93 1487 10.47 11.36
MSCI Europe-Local 6.86 19.05 18.63 7.15 9.74 11.36
Emerging Markets Stvie 17.85 33.53 3220 29.21 12.50 12.94
MSCI Emerging Markets—Unhedged 17.64 32.59 30.97 26.97 9.40 10.47
MSCI Emerging Markets-Local 14.65 28.88 26.79 2267 12.84 23.23
Small Cap Style 14.02 29.86 28.91 24.55 14.42 11.65
MSCIEAFE Small Cap-Unhedged 11,71 19.31 25.34 23.97 — —
Return Attribution for EAFE Countries
Fourth Quarter 2006

Country Total Local Currency  Weighting

Australia 16.19% 10.01% 5.62% 5.57%

Austria 18.85% 14.17% 4.10% 0.62%

Belgium 10.13% 5.80% 4.10% 1.25%

Denmark 16.11% 11.49% 4.14% 0.82%

Finland 10.42% 6.07% 4.10% 1.43%

France 10.49% 6.14% 4.10% 10.10%

Germany 1437% 9.87% 410% 7.44%

Greece 15.08% 10.55% 4.10% 0.64%

Hong Kong 14.54% 14.32% 0.19% 1.78%

Ireland 17.44% 12.82% 4.10% 0.89%

Ttaly 11.95% 7.54% 4.10% 3.88%

Japan 5.01% 5.98% -0.91% 22.55%

Netherlands 7.14% 2.92% 4.10% 3.39%

New Zealand 21.79% 12.79% 8.00% 0.16%

Norway 26.12% 20.46% 4.69% 0.92%

Portngal 12.87% 8.43% 4.10% 0.35%

Singapore 23.30% 19.28% 3.40% 0.95%

Spain 14.27% 9.78% 4.10% 4.05%

Sweden 1987% 11.93% 7.10% 261%

Switzerland 7.85% 499% 2.72% 6.88%

UK 10.28% 5.25% 4.78% 23.71%

* Returns less than one year are not annualized. Varker Foviese s Foupth |




International Yields Up; Doltar Falis

Disregarding the past year’s central bank tightening and the U.S.
consumers’ housing woes, the global economy displayed remarkable
resilience during the fourth quarter Thanks to a drop in oil prices,
headline inflation measures moderated. However, in most countries
core inflation remained elevated. With that backdrop, global interest
rates edged higher causing the Citi Non-U.S. Government Bond
Index to lose 7 bps in local terms. Due to a falling dollar, the unhedged
version of the index advanced 2.09% for U.S.-based investors.

Eurozones solid GDP growth rate provided cover for two
quarter-point interest rate hikes by the hawkish European Central
Bank. Ten-year rates rose by almost 25 bps and the German 10-year
bund yielded 3.95% at year’s end. Playing a similar tune, the Bank of
England increased short-term rates by 25 bps to 5.00% in the quarter.
In lockstep with short rates, the yield on 10-year gilts increased 22 bps
to 4.74%. The long end of the yield curve continued to be significantly
inverted due to British pension funds’ demand for long duration assets.
The 30-year gilt yielded only 4.2% at the end of December.

The dollar fell against both the euro and pound sterling, as interest rate
differentials between the U.S. and Europe narrowed. The prospect of
central bank reserve diversification also muted demand for the
greenback. The euro appreciated more than 4% against the U.S. dollar,
and posted an all-time high versus the yen Similarly, the pound
sterling gained 4.78% against the dollar The Reserve Bank of
Australia increased rates by 25 bps to 6.25% and the Australian dollar
surged 5.62% against the U.S. dollar.

In Japan, yields were largely unchanged over the quarter. The Bank of
Japan held short rates steady and 10-year JGBs were essentially
unchanged at 1.69%. The ven depreciated 91 bps against the U.S.
doliar. Like the ven, the Canadian dollar was one of the few major
currencies to lose ground against the U.S. dollar. The Canadian doliar
fell 4.13% due to a drop in the price of commodities—a major
Canadian export. Canadian rates moved in sympathy with U.S. rates;
10-year Canadian rates gained 0.08% to end the quarter at 4.09%.

The market’s relentless appetite for higher vielding assets did not
abate, pushing the JPMorgan EMBI Global Diversified Index up
3.81% in the quarter. Appreciating emerging currencies propped up

Return Attribution for Non-U.5. Govt Indices local currency returns. The local currency debt market, as measured by
Fourth Quarter 2006 .. o the JPMorgan ELM]I, increased 6.68%. However, all was not quiet in
Country i Local  Turroncy™ WIS | i ing debt market. Ecuadorian debt plummeted 17.7%, as th
Australia 535% 026% 562% 0.40% € emerging debl market dorian debt plummeted 17.7%, as the
Austria 3.55% -0.53% 410% 1.82% president-elect indicated an unwillingness to pay foreign debt holders.
Belgium 361% 0.47% 410% 3.27%
Canada -3.69% 0.46% -4.13% 2.24% Callan Style Group Returns - Fourth Quarter 2006
Denmark 3.96% -0.16% 414% 0.88% 35%
Finland 3.78% -030% 410% 0.64%
France 363% 0.45% 410% 1036%
Germany 3.72% 0.36% 410% 1223% 30% -
Greece 388% 021% 410% 248%
freland 345% 0.62% 4.10% 0.41% . O
Taly 371% ©037% 410% mwowe | e
Japan 062% 0.29% 091% 3561% 2o o -
Netherlands 3172% -0.36% 410% 2:78% - r
Norway 409% 0.58% 4.69% 0.27% .
Poland 10.90% 271% 7.98% 0.98% 15%
Portugal 3.84% 0.25% 4.10% 1.10% Giobat Fixed Non-US. Fixed
Singapore 462% 1.19% 3.40% 035% 0t Pescentile Sy S
Spain 3.62% -0.46% 4.10% 4.03% 25th Pecceaile 218 252
Sweden 7.12% 0.03% 7.10% 0.96% Median 200 2.33
Switzerland 293% 020% 2.72% 095% 75t Percentile 203 2.10
UK 445% -0.31% 478% 7.23% 90ch Peccentile 184 2.02
Ciri World Gov Unhedged Ciri Non-U.S. World Gov Unhedged
Benchmack ® 1.80 2.09
INTERNATIONAL FIXED INCOME
Style Median and Index Returns®* for Periods ended December 31, 2006
Last Last Last 3 Last5 Last 10 Last 15
Quarter Year Years Years Years Years
Global Style 2.09 6.12 3.50 8.97 5.77 6.88
Citi World Govt—Unhedged 1.80 6.11 2.93 8.41 524 6.34
Citi World Govi-Local 0.09 0.70 3.07 3.88 4.96 6.30
Non-U.S. Style 2.33 7.00 3.10 10.03 5.14 7.04
Citi Non-U.S. World Govt-Unhedged 2.09 6.95 2.88 9.50 470 6.35
Citi Non-U.S. World Govt-Local 0.07 0.09 3.04 3.65 4.60 6.50
Citi Euro Govt Bond-Unhedged 3.69 11.32 5.79 13.82 — —
Citi Euro Govt Bond-Local 0.39 0.42 4.17 5.18 — —_
JPM Emerg Mkts Bond Plus 411 10.49 11.37 15.25 11.02 13.03
* Returns less than one year are not annualized.
** Derived from MSCI EAFE data.
8 Capital Market Roview » Fourth (uare
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A Turndng Tide?

e incrodible infhi of capital Pows has been part of any read estate-related
convarsstion over the past year The fowth quarter of 2006 proved o be oo
exorpiion with the anwooncement of the Bgeest privaization iy histony,
Bilacksione Parfners agresd 1o mwchase Sam Falfs Eguity Office
Propartins—ibe lugest office BEIT in the Uinited Sinfeg :
$10 billion e oquity for a feisl of 536 billicn including debt This purchase
and singdlar activity have continpslly bolaered BEIT performars by
sonfractiag supply and escalating prices. The RAREIT Equity Index rose
5% in the {eorth quanior and 35.1% for the vear The top sectors for the
guartay mchuded Spedialty (41459} Healih Care (F14.0%) snd Qffics
{+11.9%%) Office alen provided the highest relrn for the vaar (4435 2%,
boosted by numstous inrge privatin

s in the secior. Restdential {+4.0%)
carne i last among 3l soctors durmp the quartes, Guarall RETe showed
st duning the fourth quarter, ot thers ik uncoriainly i the markeiplace
75 0 whether the currest pricing i ressonsiie and sustainahle.

Itemationsd real estaie markeiz demonsivated fervor pver the guarter dus o
an abusianoe of IPO astivity and continued REIT legislative developrments
in the UK and Cermany. The FTSE EPRAMAREIT (lebal Real Fatate
Envdex advanced 14.0% duning the fourth guariern

The pavate side of regf estale remained stable vver the guarter and waz wp
3.5%, a5 vasssured by the NCREIF Propeety Index. Loading sectors were
Hotel and Offics, ascanding 7.04% and 5.77%, vespantively. Clearly the aver
gychical Office secior i5 e vogue, with record-breshing seles vohume and
wand-bogaling sales prices n metropolilan markets such a8 New Yok and
Washingion, D.C., as domonsirmed by the Essiom region’s dominant
perfermanee (F3.67%6). Despite the positive performence, itansaction
vohune bas dechosd over bast your in many other seciors, such as Apartments
{-37%%;}, Retagl (-18%} and fndustrial £-15%;). These dechines may sigual that
thare 15 2 disconnact between high prces and shrinking vislds Favorable
supply and demand levels have served as 2 buller v ey wmajor disraptions,

and many are wondering 1 ihay con continue to do so.
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Private Equity Market

Preliminary estimates for 2006 fundraising totaled $215.4 billion in
commitments and 322 new funds. This exceeds the prior record of
$177.9 billion, set at the height of the 2000 bubble. The market share
for venture capital commitments continues to decline, falling 10 12%
in 2006,

The pace of investments by funds into companies also set an all-time
record. According to Buyours newsletter, buyout-sponsored
acquisitions in 2006 totaled 1,007 transactions, with 316 deals
announcing values of $315 billion. This 15 up from 852 deals in 20053,
with 392 disclosing values of $200 billion. Over half of the 2006
announced value ($174 billion) was concentrated in just 23
transactions. The largest deal of the year—the $33 billion going-
private transaction by HCA—was closed in the fourth quarter by a
consortium of three private equity investors: Bain, KKR and Merrill
Lynch.

Exit activity increased in 2006. Thompson Financial reports that 66
buyout-backed companies went public, raising $17.5 billion,
compared with 67 buyout-backed IPOs totaling $15.8 billion the prior
year. Regarding venture-backed IPOs, 58 companies raised $5.3
billion in 2006, up from 56 IPOs raising $4.5 billion in 2005. Venture-
backed merger activity totaled 335 deals, of which 146 announced
values totaling $16.6 billion, up slightly from the previous year.

Hedge Funds Soar on Upside Risk

Last quarter, a strong, resilient global economy defied skeptics again,
giving investors nothing to fear but fear itself. Consequently, it
seemed that every risk—short of being short—was rewarded last
quarter. As the proxy for an unmanaged hedge fund universe of open
and closed funds, the CSFB/Tremont Hedge Fund Index jumped
5.78% in the fourth quarter, trailing MSCI World Equity’s 8.37%
advance. For 2006, the CSFB/Tremont Index gained 13.86%.

Among CSFB/Tremont’s substrategies, several sectors were
particularly strong. Emerging Markets (+9.12%) vaulted ahead of
other hedge fund strategies, with a powerful boost from MSCI
Emerging Markets (+17.64%) and JPM EMBI+ (+4.11%). Aided by
strong equity markets last quarter, the Long-Short Equity manager
climbed 7.04%. Amid the M&A feeding frenzy, Merger Arb accrued
a handsome 3.35% profit.

Representing well-diversified hedge fund programs, the median
manager in Callan’s Hedge Fund-of-Funds Database rose 4.68%
last quarter, net of fees. Repeating the prior quarter’s performance
finish, the FoF manager with more directional equity or credit
exposure generally beat the absolute return-oriented manager. In the
fourth quarter, the median Long-Short Equity FoF (+5.43%) beat the
Absolute Return FoF (+3.85%) and Core Diversified FoF (+4.62%).

Monthiy Net Returns: CAl Hedge FoF Database
3.0%

Please see our upcoming issue of Private Markets Trends for more I
in-depth coverage. i o
2.0% 3
Funds Closed January 1 through December 31, 2006 R N B B
Strategy # of Funds $ Amt {mil) % T e} T
Venture Capital 119 25,138 12% LR o R
Acquisition/Buyouts 125 146,033 68% oo | . re . Awg . asy
Subordinated Debt 25 20,375 9% 00%
Distressed Debt 4 2810 1% October 2006 November 2006 December 2006
i Oth Percentile 32 62 202
Other 7 397 2% és‘: Percex:li;e ?ga ;.g! 130
Fund-of-funds 42 17,273 8% Mediza 150 168 L
Totals m 315,400 100% Wnboente 00 o A
Sowrce: The Private Equity Analyst IMohTBiE 038 o3 o4l
ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS
Style Median and Index Returns* for Periods ended December 31, 2006
Last Last Last 3 last5 Last 10 Last15
Quarter Year Years Years Years Years
Convertibles Database 4.31 10.71 7.03 6.90 9.56 11.28
ML Convertible, All Qualities 501 12.83 7.70 7.75 8.54 —
Hedge I'und-of-Frunds Database 4.68 10.62 8.00 745 1047 10.99
Market Neutral Equity Style 0.78 6.89 4.74 4.55 5.34 6.00
CSFB/Tremont Equity Market Neutral 226 11.15 7.90 7.64 10.54 —
CSFB/Tremont Long/Short Equity 7.04 14.38 11.86 10.07 12.78 —
CSFB/Tremont Event-Driven 6.01 15.73 13.01 11.65 11.21 —
CSFB/Tremont Convertible Arb 3.26 14.30 434 5.93 9.32 —
CSFB/Tremont Fixed Income Arb 265 8.66 533 593 5.60 —
90-Day T-Bills 126 485 3.07 243 381 4.00
WP/VE Post-Venture Cap 10.52 405 903 5.30 4.06 8.00
GS Commodity 444 -15.03 7.75 14.81 6.36 7.30
MILM Managed Futures 0.78 0.40 2.54 1.97 5.28 6.30
Dow Jones—-AlG Commaodity 410 271 7.17 13.34 3.16 425
* Returns less than one year are not annualized.
10 Capitat Market Review « Fourth Quarner 2006
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The US. sconneny fared vary well i 2000 with 3 GDP growsh rate
of 33% for the vew, just ghove trend ard shghily ahead of 2005
Growih slowed over the coums of e vear, oyding down frem the
robusi 5.6% in the first guarter o 2.4% and 2496 in the seoond and
thurd guarters, bul the axient of the slowndown 15 now In guestion.
Stronger fourth guanier cconomic daia on emplovment, irade.
incomes, inflation and poodaciion, 3 plunge 1o o peces and o sudden
hurst 10 conswiner confidence all suggest el we mmay vl bave oo
0 run in the current seonoiae expansion. Second and third guansy
growth sates were rovised X

upward 33 the vear pingressed and the
fourth quanier 3PP growth came in & a0 aHomied 3.0%, much
mgher than anticipated. Growth i the 2ur wope ad Japan looks
mash move sobid than avesr agn, Ching and Indiz contines 16 axpand
rapidly, ond the globsl ecoponyy i sesing stead, synchronired
growih for e frst finw in voars.

~

Concems xre focused on fhe U8 bousing markst The housisg
market bubble ww fzcling fost, perhope favler then expeciad, with
bomne prces shding, inveniones of wscld homes ballooning, and
starts Dnfling shamply (Becanber 2006 sarts were down 18% from
Diecamber 2005} The contraction i bousing tmpects the sconoemy m
sdtiple secton, moluding comtruction activily, finance, nsyEance
and regd eslate servines, snd wholesgls and reisl wade, as well a8
idirectly through consumer spending md confidence. Imtisd
sstimates suggest that i e third and Durth guarters of 2005 fhe
direct affect on construction alone chopeed over 19 off GDP growdh.
kedian bome prices bave fpHen shamply i some of the wmom
overtesied marhets or the ccasis. The rend eve-caiching statisio,
provided by the Makonad Association of Realtore, i3 the decline of the
madian price for existing homes af the national level by 1.0% in the
third quaries, and another expecied drop of 3.9% o the fowrth quarter
& decline i the noraingd price of existing bomes & the mationgd Jevel
1 viriustly unprecedenind.

Congwasy confidence shot up i the founh quarier, buoved by deoean
jab srowdh, improving rest wages, and the sharg drop in ol prices A
sonfiderd conswmer is dewly good news foy hoosing and retsl. The
soononmy crealsd 167,008 new jobs i Decgmber on top of 154.00iHn
MNovember, iotaling 1.% oulhion iohs over te sowse of the veay, fora
orowili rate of 1.4%, comparsble fo the 1.5% reporied n 2003
- Growidl o mal wages {adfuated for ioflation? turned positive in 2006
for the first Sme since 2003 081 prices folf fo $55 by the end of the
vear afer oresting o ovay 374 it the peak of the recent ovcle, and the
effect i@ gkin 10 2 iox oW for conswmers. A confident consumer,
supnoriad by g growing economy and siable for declinimg) morzags

fofiathmt - Yooy {ver Yesr

R 2 & RE RS

ooooso 3% {437 Lidhzer osistanss)

n 4

RS B A% %) S 33 00 G 52 9% 54 05 0R S 38 OF 23 0f QF 43 0f 8% 66

rais conttd spedl the ead of the decline 1o e housing merket ag coon
as the first hail of 2007,

Corposations aoyed anciber veir of strong profit growdh, the fifth
voar in 3 row, and proflis continus 1o sed renards a5 measwrsd by thar
share of GOP Capacity 15 belng siveiched, as Hustrated by a fotony
ofiiizaton rate sbove 80% {fhe mwucyl Hoe that typically Gipgers
mwesiroands, and undilieg onders for noo-defonse capitad poods bave
been chimbing steadily thecugh 2005 and 2806, As 5 el oapitad
spending Bas soen sirong growih, led by eguipmend and soflware,
wihich has averaged 856 o 10% growih over the past three years.
Takmy e lead b1 the second half of 2006 was non-residentied
consiruction, mcluding invesiment i office, heghth care, and
veanufachaing stuchues, as wedl oy ouaing aml petrolsuan Taciiitizg,

Inflation surped ot dtmes during the past two vears, surpassing 4% in
the £l of 2003 204 apon in the spring of 2006, but by teend of 2806
corswner prios infistion, broughy down by the drop in oif prices, Bl
hack to 2.5%. dowsn from the 3.4% recordsd af vear-end 2008 The
“eore” inflafion mossure Gat malters 1o the Fod {sxdeding e
volatiie energy and fod prices) rose towand 3% during 3006 byl then
fimshed the vear back ot 2.6%% Tis level of core mBation is cleady
above ihe Fed's artivudated comdbrd wone of 2% 10 2.2, bis appears
o be subsiding. The songey sconony cenbined with the lesening
hreat fron inflation mewrs the Fad de uolikely 16 lower o raise ratss
i e frst haif of 2007 O prives remain & wild card for fufurs
wilation Warm December weathey in the 118, and benevolent supply
conditions belped push dowsn o prices; bt 2 significarst supply
disruption could easily mend pocey hack over %70, re-ignibtmy
mfiatiorary prossures.

LS. ECOMORY
Recent Gusrterly lralostors

P-4 Usban Conmuners {2800y oeyenn; 3.2% 2.5%
PPE--Al Coramodiies {ynarovemysas 7.3% §.8%
Envpdovmen Cost-Towd Compensation Growilh 38% 2.5%
PMon-favm Businges-—Produciivity Goowth 3.6% 3.3%
GOF Growih 3.4% 3.3%
dancfachning Capacity Utilization {fevei®a) FRA 5%
Lionaminey embnes bdex {1966=1 (00 3,943 92

* Usinuged

N
3. 3% $.5% 3.5% P
25% 2.8% 2.4% 3.2%
£.4%, 4 155 £3% 1.2%%
§ 2% 1.8% 55% 26%
185 756 HEE 3.5
(R 05 3.824 3883 3838




The Bulls fire Bunning Soron
g 8 Catlan Sryie Group Returns ~ Pourth Cuerter 2008

Corporaie profils, strong MEA sctivity and the Fed's desisio 13 hold short- P
term inderest vates steady & 5.25% propelied s world's siod mﬁ\'\iﬁ
gew heights 0 the fourth qoerey, Bguity madie pulp aﬂi their bond T4,

counterparts, both af home {Hoseell 3000 7. 12% varsug {,ehmaz“ §3we?~et<}
Sggregate: +1.24%) and abroad (MBCT BAFE: +10.35% veraus Citigroup
Mon-L. 5. World Govemument Bond: +2.00%) As a result, those fund
sponpory with greafer ol exposurs surpasaad thelr more conservatively
imvesied pesrs.

Callzn estimsdes the rocent ol retume of the imstiuiionsl imvesior
community by using the median manager refurns Som the lafest quarter snd
enshing asvet slocapions Prors fhe pnoy guater

The adiacent graph—iHusirating the range of rotums for public, corporste
#nd Tafi-Hartley pension plans, 28 wsié 5 endowmeninoundations—ahows
sobid gaies soross the board. The table below compares the retums of fow
types of nstifutionsd ford sponsors fo several benclunarks over longer me
pericals, Choices B asset sliocation explain wouch of the differsnce i
perfornumse. For the fourth guomern. Bwd sponmsors with mome sggressive
azzed allocstions came ouwt op top. The nwdisn endownmeni/Toundaiion
Ry tad éi:; mmstintonal sounterpanis. wilh o aversge public eguity
atincaticn of 63%. With shightly lower puldic equay allocstions, corpomis

S

ared pubiic plans were not far bebind, sach dung 5 72% o the median casg 2%
Weighed down i}y graater bond diocations. the median Taft-Hartey ;:sgﬁ

{45 25%) tratled 65 peors in the fourth quartes L

{allan’e belanced messger groups genenslly owiniatn weli-diversiiie
ponfolios and attompt to add value by wnderweiphting or overweighting

assat classes, as well 2 through stock sclection. In the recent guastez, global
halanced manspers beat thelr staic 8% oquity and 40% fed incoms
benchmark while domestic balonoed manspers logped thety tavget

DAVERSIFIED ACCOUNT DATABASE
Fryte Madian and Index Returns® for Periods ended Decomber 31, 2006
Last fast 3 faxt 5 §any 33 faxt 1%
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Callan Market Overview




’ Market Overview h
The charts below illustrate the range of returns across managers in Callan's Separate Account database over the
most recent one quarter and one year time periods. The database is broken down by asset class to illustrate the difference in
returns across those asset classes. An appropriate index is also shown for each asset class for comparison purposes. As an
example, the first bar in the upper chart illustrates the range of returns for domestic equity managers over the last quarter.
The tnangle represents the S&P 500 return. The number next to the triangle represents the ranking of the S&P 500 in the
domestic equity manager database.

/

MARKET OVERVIEW
ACTIVE MANAGEMENT VS INDEX RETURNS

Range of Separate Account Manager Returns by Asset Class
One Quarter Ended December 31, 2006

14%
12%+
10% (49)
g 8%
2 (65)]a
& 6% 1
A% (1D]a
2% - Gy ———
(51) el (82) e,
0,
0% Demestic Non-US Domestic Non-US Real Cash
Equity Equity Fixed-Income  Fixed-Income Estate Equivalents
Vs vs vs Vs Vs vs
S&P 500 MSCI EAFE LB Aggr Bd Citi Non-US Gov NCREIF Index 3 Mon T-Bills
10th Percentile 9.82 12.32 3.30 3.20 5.73 1.38
25th Percentile 8.48 11.41 1.51 2.52 4.06 1.36
Median 7.27 10.35 1.24 233 3.12 1.31
75th Percentile 6.20 9.73 1.11 2.10 2.22 1.27
90th Percentile 4.97 8.56 0.97 2.02 1.15 1.24
Index & 6.70 10.35 1.24 2.09 4.51 1.26
Range of Separate Account Manager Returns by Asset Class
One Year Ended December 31, 2006
35%
30%
25% 3]
g 20%
=
JICRRELTS bt o o4
10%4
'—J (51)E
5% (74) el 83) M.,
0% Domestic Non-US Domestic Non-US Real Cash
Equity Egquity Fixed-Income  Fixed-Income Estate Equivalents
Vs Vs vs vs Vs Vs
S&P 500 MSCI EAFE LB Aggr Bd Citi Non-US Gov NCREIF Index 3 Mon T-Bills
10th Percentile 21.39 30.63 8.16 9.33 27.53 5.26
25th Percentile 18.21 28.99 5.16 7.23 19.22 519
Median 15.14 26.66 4.62 7.00 14.44 5.07
75th Percentile 10.64 24.04 4.32 6.30 8.12 4.91
90th Percentile 6.80 20.82 3.90 4.99 4.23 4.82
Index & 15.79 26.34 4.33 6.95 16.59 4.85
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DOMESTIC EQUETY
Active Management Overview

Agtive vs the Index
The Jomestic eguity market remamsd robust o the fourth quarter of ZI0Q Factrs that contribuied 1o the market r:aiz
that began i the suwmmer continued 0 support stocks uf vear-end. Moderate inflation, In part due 1o lower snergy
prices, led the Fed jo fzave the federal funds rate unchanged al 525%. The vear was characterized by volatility in
miarket leadership that created an environment challenging for active funds following long-term mvesimeni straieﬂies
Al thres Large Cap stvles underperfonmed their indexes for the quarier. For one vear ended December 31, 2006, the
median Large Uap Core fnd returned 1550% while the S&P 300 retumned 15 9% St © ap funds umpez"“o*mcé the
S&P &0 for the quarter with 3 median fund retun of 8.34% compared to the indew's 7.84%. However, Small Cap
funds fofl shont of the Bussell 2000% quane:h refurg Gf 3.90%. For the vear, Small Cap's retum of 14.60% lagped both
the B&P 600 and the Russell 2000, which had refurms of 15.11% and 18 37%, regpestively,

Lavge Cap vs Smugl Cap
it the previous iwe qusmer:.? indications of an end t© Bmall Cap leaderehip emerged a5 Largs Cap giocks cutperformed

Bmall Cap stocks. However, Small Tap «iocks rebounded in the fourth quarter of 206 beating Large Cap and did Cap
stock funds scross 98 styles. Russell 2000 sectors that lagged carior in $he ve earhedped drive wiammc» i the fourth
quarter. The median Small Cop Broad fund returned 834% for the fourth gquarier compared 1o the median Large Cap
Broud fund which gained only £.54%,

Lorowdh vs Value

For the guarier and year ended December 31, 2006, Vabse stocks agatn beat Growth stocks, For the vear, Value siocks
cuiperformed Growth stocks across all market capiializations and the sproad between Vdue and Growth increased
atong with capiialization size. Growth funds wsually have larger sliocations in the technology and heslthcare seuofs
angd ehile these sectors fared well, they mdprpari orened rz‘:tegrawi oifs, uiilivies and consumer staples by newly 50%.
The outperformance of these "value sectors” help fo explam Yahe funds' omperiommw of Crowth funds for tixe YRar.
The median Large Cap Value fond retumed 1922% for one year ended December 31, 2008 The median Large Cap
Growih fund re“im;eé 7.339% for the same thne penod.

Q&P 68 &.70%
S&P 500 Growth: 5.05%
S5&P 500 ¥akeer  T.71%

Separate Account Riyle Group Median Returns RalMdtap D080
for (uarier Ended Decomber 31, 2888 SEP 600 ; Growih: 7.26%

33‘” fx :ﬁue 5.40%

Retwns

matf O %m*’i C»d- S'szdi un Boid Oy B Ox Mid Cap  large Cap Large Ca Large
Gy *-wirsp Foe T uum-?? V&hmp ’om\édr némmrp Vainge ? Cap Core

S&F 50
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A&.? :‘8{} Yaive:
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for Ome Year Euded December 32, 2086 S&P 60 Grosls
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bme et o N\

WD L3 e R
R s R §

(s s mea s Y e e

Returns

Semgif Cap Smallt Oz2p Sm;sii ap  Mid Cap M Cap Mk Lange Cap  Large Cay
Growth alue Brosd Crowihs Vebkuwe i Crowik ‘miﬂf
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DOMESTIC FIXED-INCOME
Active Management Overview

Aetive vs the Judex ]
n the fourth quarier of 2006, the fourth consecutive meeting of the Fed lof} the Fodersd Funds rate unchanged at 3.25%.

This led to postlive gaing acrose the asset class. The Lebmen Aggrepaie returned 1.24% for the guarier wisle the 7

median Core Bond fund produced an additional 2 hasis poinis, with 2 quanedy rebn of 1.26%. For the vear ended
December 3%, 2¥6, the median Core Bond fund returned 454%, an increase of o4 basis poinis over last goariss’s
return of 3.90% The one-vesr return for Core Bonds henped ahead of the Lehman Apgregais retwrn of 433% by 21

bagis poina. )

Short v Long Duration ) ) _ i ) i ] )
The Fed Funds rate should conlinue io hold steady untl economie data gives a olear sign of change between growih and

wiffationary nisks 1o the sconomy. The resulting inverted vield curve, often signaling the begimning of a recession, could
also be iaken as a sign of the magket’s confidence m Fed policy as well a3 optinusn: ix other aress of the bond market
With shorter-ferm vielkds reragining higher than longer-term, Active Cash funds were Tavored over Bxlended Matority
funds with returas of LI7% and 073%, respectively. For the quader ended DBecember 31, 2006, Defensive funds

inched ahead of Intermadiate funds by 2 basis points, posting & median retum of 1.13% versus 1.13%.

Mortgages and High Yidd ) o . o
Desprie the currant housing sector slowdown, Morigage Backed sscurities sill meanaged 3 posifive retumn of 1L.56% for

the quarter ended December 31, 2006 and 334% for the vear High Yidd produced the highest rebwns, doiven
primerily by low defwilt rates and the expeciation of coniinued postiive corporate camings. Although, raling the
Lehmman High Yicld by 13 basis points for the guarier and 139 basis poinis for the vear, High Yidd still posied the
steongest performance with retorns of 4.07% and 10.46%, respectively.

1.50%
1.24%

Separate Account Sivie Group Median Reluras

. L 1.04%
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% P
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+ 3 s Lebman Aggoepater 4.33%
Beparate Acvennt Style Group Medisn Returns it 3705
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INTERMATIONAL EQUITY
Active Manasgement Overvisw

Asiive va. the Jadey
The guarter eﬁécé Dracersber 31, 2006 was outsianding for mtemational eguity funds a5 nvesiors’ confidence continued
to soar. Al stvle group median rensns wers moe fhzm double the impressive fgures posted last guarter. The biggest’

increass was generaied by e Euwrope group, which returned 11.78%. For both the quarier and vear ended December
34, B304, Emerging Markels mmpﬂ’{i alf othor wtamationsd sguity siyle groups, with the madian fuynd returming 17.345%
and 33.50%, reapectively. The median Fn‘e”q)ng Market fund slso added value over the MBCT Emerging Marksts
Index: 20 basiz polntz for fie guarter and 131 basis poinis for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006

o

The Evropean economy continued {0 expenence healihy economic growth as compared to the U8, decpzze the fact that
the doflar gained some strength. The madian Buropean fund pssted a very strong retn of 11.78% for fourth quarier
2006, vounding owt & very solid year with an asnaal retum of 33.36%, only lagging behind the Ecne:gmg Market group.
The only datnper on the positive news was the wnder-performance of the MSCI Ewrope index by 36 basiz points for the
year

Pacific

Japan’s growth appeased wesker as the yen contimyed to fll against the dollar However, for the cuarter ended
Bepsmber 31, 2006, Japan genertied & positive reforn of 470%, but continusd to be the worst performer for the guarter
and farthe vear ended B&@m%@f 31,2006, In stark contrast (o the steflar performanees throoghout Intemational eguity,
the medisn E:zp'm Ooly fimd posted an snnual vetum of 414% for 2006 This weak wrf@mmc«., was confined to Japan
a5 the median Pacific Basin manager posted healthy guanierly and annual retumns of 877% and 14.36%, respectively.

N2
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MARKET PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

RRARERANS,
ARG

Strong corpovaie profii growih, slewing but positive GDP growth, and muderate inflation
ted 1o another strong global equity market for the 4th Quarter. 2006 equity market retums were the
best since 2003 and surprised many market participards with the surge over the last half of the vear.

#international equity markets continued to outperform the U.& as the dollar weakened and local
foreign markets improved as well. Once agam, tviernationa! emerging markets led all other major
SEZMEnS.

A slowing economy, tempered inflation fears, and expectations of an easing of Fed policy in 20647
provided the underpinings for advances in the 1.8, bond market High yield and internations!
eimerging markets bonds putperformed the investment grade sectors of the US. and developed
forcign bond markets, as spread relationships continued to tighien.

»Rost hedge fund sectors achioved double digit returns afier two mediocrs vears. Hecord desl
votume fucled profits in merger arbilrage and strong gains in emerging markets led the equily
long/short sector. Real estate posted another tmpressive year, as the domestic REFT index grew
aver 35%.

BMajor Eguity Market Indices

IS Losrgger oy

s ‘Sn‘ss-.?i Clagy

EDesrawbo gl : : :
Internatiozal : :
Elogsadty |

Feswersing dMarkets
iy 3T

~35 ~25 ~1 5 -5

w2006 WD

Han Assceistes, fnc

1B Large Cap = Raossell 1004, US Smull Cop = Busselt 2006, Dev. Int'l Bguily = MSUC BAYE, Frerging Mits Eoguity = MSCE EM net
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- MARKET PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS |

Major Bond Market Indices
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[ MARKET VALUE STATEMENT ]
Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers
December 31, 2006 September 30, 2006

Market Value Percent Market Value Percent
Domestic Equity $ 66,709,589.79 359% $ 60,476,094.29 36.9%
INTECH Large Cap Growth $ 8,882874.16 4.8% $ 8,087211.46 4.9%
Rainier Large Cap Growth $ 8,651,839.85 4.7% $ 764462362 47%
Vanguard Large Cap Index $ 21,600,256.21 11.6% $ 20,216,766.39 12.3%
AllianceBemstein Diversified Value $ 9,410,670.58 5.1% $ 8,656,396.09 53%
Great Lakes Large Cap Value $ 8,785,223.83 4.7% $ 8,276,426.54 5.0%
Eagle Asset Mgmt $ 4,686,004.67 2.5% $ 3,774,380.19 2.3%
TAMRO Capital Partrers $ 4,692,720.49 2.5% $ 3,820,290.00 2.3%
International Equity $ 25311,789.13 13.6% $ 22,562,672.41 13.8%
Artisan International Fund $ 12,462,918.06 6.7% $ 11,274,828.48 6.9%
Harbor International Fund $ 12,848,871.07 6.9% $ 11,287,843.93 6.9%
Emerging Markets $ 522430842 2.8% $ 442544318 2.7%
SSgA Emergng Markets Fund $ 5,224308.42 2.8% $ 4,425,443.18 2.7%
Domestic Fixed Income $ 79,309,144.65 42.6% $ 72,208,696.87 44.0%
Vanguard Total Bond Index $ 43,823.971.71 23.6% $ 5822204292 355%
Western Asset Mgmt $ 16,725,544.11 9.0% $ 13,986,653.95 8.5%
Richmond Capital Management $ 9,380,847.77 5.0% $ - 0.0%
Athntic Asset Management $ 9,378,781.06 5.0% $ - 0.0%
Cash Equivalents $ 943636326 5.1% $ 4354,073.17 2.7%
STI Classic Instl Cash Management $ 9,436,363.26 51% $ 4354,073.17 2.7%
Total Fund $185,991,195.25 100.0% $ 164,026,979.92  100.0%
Managers/Funds Added

> Atlantic Asset Management (Bonds) 10/03/2006
»Richmond Capital Management (Bonds) 10/03/2006

Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Imjury Compensation Fund




[ PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Total Fund Returns

for Periods Ended December 31, 2006

Last Quarter Last Year
VBIF Total Fund 5.51 11.74
VBIF Index Target 4.88 11.72
VBIF Style Target 477 10.64

Factors Helping Performance
» Strong global stock market returns

» Slight overweight to stocks versus bonds
» Solid absolute and relative performance by most managers
» Allocations to international and emerging markets stocks

Factors Hindering Performance

» Moderate underperformance by U.S. large cap managers (Intech and Great
Lakes)

» Low return environment for bonds
Cumulative Return: Actual vs Targets

16.0%
14.0% — 371 - VBEF Endex Tarpel
13.54% - VBIF Total Fund
12.68% - VBIF Style Target
- 12.0% —
=
L]
=
w  10.0% —
L
&
-E 8.0% |
= 6.85%- CP1+ 42%
Z 60%
5
4.0% —
2.0% —
0.0% ; 1 , .

2005 2006

Style Target = 30% CAI MF: Lg Cap Broad Style; 5% CAI MF: Sm Cap Broad Style; 12% CAI MF: Intl Core Equity Style; 3% CAI MF: Emerging
Markets Style; 45% CAI MF: Core Bond Style; 5% CAI Cash Management

Index Target = 30% MSCI U.S. Prime Market 750; 5% MSCI U.S. Small Cap 1750; 12% MSCI EAFE; 3% MSCI Emerging Markets; 45% LB
Aggregate;, 5% 90-day T-Bill
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[ FUND PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS ]‘%
)

Returns

for Periods Ended December 31, 2006

Last Quarter
Domestic Equity

INTECH Large Cap Growth 3.7%
Rainier Large Cap Growth 6.8%
Vanguard Large Cap Index 6.8%

Bernstein Divers. Value 8.9%
Great Lakes Large Value 6.3%
MSCI:US Prime Mkt 750 6.9%
Eagle Asset Management 8.3%
TAMRO Capital Partners 12.4%

MSCI:US Small Cap 1750 8.6%
International Equity

Artisan International 10.5%

Harbor International 13.8%

MSCI:EAFE US$ 10.4%

SSgA Emerging Markets 18.0%

MSCI.Emer Markets 17.6%
Domestic Fixed Income

Western Asset Core Plus 2.0%

Vanguard Tot Bd, Inst 1.4%

LB:Aggr Bd 1.2%

VBIF Total Fund 5.5%

VBIF Style Target 4.8%

VBIF Index Target 4.9%

Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Fund

Last Year

4.4%
4.3%
11.7%

10.6%
11.7%




( QUARTERLY OUTLOOK SUMMARY — January 17, 2007

A number of economic, political and psychological factors influence emerging trends in the
domestic stock and bond markets. The following chart summarizes our reading of the primary
factors that are presently driving expectations for the next six to twelve months.

INFLUENCING PRESENT IMPACTON | IMPACT ON
FACTOR CONDITION BONDS STOCKS

Economic Fundamentals

Inflation/Trend Moderate/Stabilizing Neutral Neutral
Fed Policy/Liquidity Neutral Neutral Neutral
Fiscal Environment Stimulative Neutral Positive
Consumer Spending Moderating Positive Negative
Capital Spending Stable Neutral Neutral
GDP Growth Forecast 2%-3% & Positive Positive
Recent/Long-Term Dollar Trend Stable/Down Neutral Neutral
Interest Rate Conditions
Short-Term Rates Stable Neutral Neutral
Long-Term Rates Stable Positive Positive
Yield Curve Flat Neutral Neutral

Stock Market Fundamentals

Earnings Growth Positive Neutral Positive
Earnings Expectations Moderating Neutral Neutral
Valuation Level Fair Neutral Positive

Current Issues

Consumer Confidence Stable Neutral Neutral

Employment Trend Stable Neutral Positive

Geopolitical Risks Intense Positive Negative
Conclusion:

Global stock markets continued to surge during the fourth quarter, ending the year with the strongest
annual performance since the current recovery began in 2003. Our analysis of the economic
fundamentals continues to support a high probability of a “soft landing™ scenario that would be
generally positive for the equities markets in the New Year. Investment grade bonds appear to be
reasonably priced, given a stabilizing inflation outlook and the end to Fed tightening, but lower rated
“spread” securities such as high yield bonds continue to be over valued.

l T ¢ Denotes changes from the preceding Markets Outlook Summary.

Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Fund




IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE

In reviewing this information, you should remember that past performance may not be
indicative of future results. Different types of investments involve varying degrees of risk,
and there can be no assurance that the future performance of any specific asset class,
investment, investment strategy, or product made reference to directly or indirectly in this
piece, will be profitable, equal any corresponding indicated historical performance level(s),
or be suitable for your portfolio. Due to various factors, including changing market
conditions, the content may no longer be reflective of current opinions or positions.
Moreover, you should not assume that any discussion or information contained in this piece
serves as the receipt of, or as a substitute for, personalized investment advice from Capital
Advisory Group. A copy of our current written disclosure statement discussing our advisory
services and fees remains available for your review upon request.

Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Fund
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INTECH Large Cap Growth (Composite)

Returns

for Periods Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAl MF - Large Cap Growth Style

20.0

Returns
for Calendar Years

5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI MF - Large Cap Growth Style
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Rainier Large Cap Growth (Composite)

Retums
for Periods Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Large Cap Growth Style

Retums
for Calendar Years
5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAl Large Cap Growth Style
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AllianceBernstein Diversified Value (Composite)

Returns

for Periods Ended December 31, 2006

Group: CAI Large Cap Value Style
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Returns
for Calendar Years
S Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Large Cap Value Style
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Returns Scatter Chart
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Great Lakes Large Cap Value (Composite)

Returns
for Periods Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Large Cap Value Style

275

Returns
for Calendar Years
5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAl Large Cap Value Style
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Eagle Small Cap Equity (Composite)

Returns
for Periods Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAl Small Capitalization Style

Returns
for Calendar Years
5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAl Small Capitalization Style
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TAMRO Small Cap Equity (Composite)

Returns
for Pertods Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Small Capitalization Style

Returns
for Calendar Years
5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Small Capitalization Style

350
750
30.0+ & A
o)
25.0- 50.0- an
20.0+ o5 - 250 ® A(D
115) _ {25 {51)
15.0+ aa E}: & (76)
® _AQ) ! | _ | il | (84) )
10.0- k(531 o 0.0
on [ ] ) ) spop
5.0 -~ (25.0)~ W B (6
0.0
(50.0% T 7 T T
(5.0) T T T T T 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Last Last Year Last3 Last5 Last7 Last 10
Quarter Years  Years  Years  Years 10th Percentile 211 1477 25.42 55.05 (3.22)
- y o o . 19 - 1586 25th Percentile 18.30 10.97 2273 4955 (9.37)
arcantile - g - - - b Median 14.60 7.55 1846 43.84 {15.11)
B S Mo ub b® um  na 75th Percentile 120 555 1377 3960 (2404)
75th Percentile 7.34 11.20 10.58 844 491 959 90th Percentile 728 278 8.81 34.55 (31.77)
90th Percentile 611 728 812 513 (0.65) 128
IAVROSmallCsp ® A 1220 2058 1507 . _ _ TAMRO:Small Cap ® 4 29.58 3.50 1361 58.64 {9.29)
Russell 2000Index ® B 890 18.37 13.56 1139 791 9.44 Russell 2000 Index mp 1837 4.55 18.33 4725 (20.48)
Retums Scatter Chart
for 12 Quarter Rolling Periods for 5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
5 Years Ended December 31, 2006 25.0
Group: CAI Small Capitalization Style ’
40.0
20.0-
50)
o] o B
@(5@ 15.0-
0.0 @
5 10.0+
o
(20.0)]
5.0+
(40.0) T T T T
3Years 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years
Ending Ending Ending Ending Ending 0.0
12/31/06 12/31/05 12/31/04 12/31/03 12/31/02
10th Percentile 18.30 2736 19.89 17.82 1175 (5.0 ; T T i 7
25th Percentile 16.33 2579 16.30 15.52 157 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0
Median 14.10 23.08 1251 7.70 0.60 ..
75th Percentile 10.58 2001 762 116 (1026) Standard Deviation
90th Percentile 3.12 16.47 228 {3.75) (20.92)
<EED CALSm Cap Broad Style ®  TAMRO:Small Cap
TAMRO:Small Cap » & 1507 23.10 17.80 20.12 - ®  Russell 2000 Index
Russell 2000 Index wm B 13.56 22.13 1148 6.27 {7.54)
12

Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Fund




fr 5 ‘g cars Ended ue-*'»n}‘

Croup:

relative i §

CAY Smaht

Fusgetl 2000 Indes
oy 31, 2006

Rolitng 4 Quarier lnformation Retio ¢

parigos Chest
2GG6
dex

mber

70

fiw 5 Years Ended Deo

wehmark: Russell

Con
s
y 31,
i

0.0

mall Cap

ARCHS

TA

k% zr

Sines lncaption of TAMROG: Smalt Cap

Eanded Docemher 31, 2006

Alpha Sharpe  Infymation
Ratio Ratio o
30 Pescentile ¥ G.9%
25t Fescentile %71 397
Shadisss .55 256 ) ;
75th Ferventi .28 D94 ’ : )
Bith Paments %13 3.91 W0H 200
TAMROG:Small Cap &, 0.97
Russef] 2000 ,.udcx G0 1.4
?,c‘sfzhg 12 Quarter Domestie Equity Stvie Chart

Hm

A

oo




Artisan International Fund

Returns
for Pertods Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI MF - Intl Core Equity Style

Returns
for Calendar Years
5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAT MF - Intl Core Equity Style
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Harbor International Fund

Returns
for Periods Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAl MF - Intl Core Equity Style

Returns
for Calendar Years
5 Years Ended December 31, 2006

Group: CAI MF - Intl Core Equity Style
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SSgA Emerging Markets Equity
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SSgA Emerging Markets Equity

Statistics relative to MSCI:Emer Markets
for 5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI MF - Emerging Markets Style
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Vanguard Total Bond Index

Returns
for Periods Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style

Returns
for Calendar Years
S Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style
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Vanguard Total Bond Index

Statistics relative to Lehman Aggregate
for 5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style
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Atlantic Asset Management
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for Periods Ended December 31, 2006 for Calendar Years
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Atlantic Asset Management

Statistics relative to LB:Aggr Bd
for 5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style
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Richmond Capital Management

. Returns Returns
for Periods Ended December 31, 2006 for Calendar Years
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Richmond Capital Management

Statistics relative to LB:Aggr Bd

for 5 Years Ended December 31, 2006
Group: CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style
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Western Asset Core Plus Bond Fund
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Western Asset Core Plus Bond Fund
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Virginia Birth-Related
Neurological Injury Compensation Fund

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Current Assets
Investment Time Horizon

Target Annual Return

$141,307,994.20 (12/31/04)
10 + years

6.8% nominal return (CPI plus 4.2%)*

Risk Tolerance 95% confidence that losses will not exceed 7.1% in a
given year
Asset Allocation Lower Normal Upper
Limit Allocation Limit
Total Equities 50%
Total Fixed Income/Cash 50%
100%
Domestic Equities 35%
Large Cap 25% 30% 35%
Small Cap 2% 5% 8%
International Equities 15%
Developed International 9% 12% 15%
Emerging Market 1% 3% 5%
Fixed Income 45%
Domestic Fixed Income 35% 45% 55%
Cash 3% 5% 15%

Total Fund Evaluation Benchmarks

Short Term - Performance will be measured against a weighted blend of market and/or median
manager benchmarks based upon the strategic asset allocation policy of the Fund.

Long Term — Inflation (CPI) plus 4.2%

*CPI assumption = 2.6% (2005 Capital Markets Projections of Callan Associates, Inc)



Asset Class
Total Portfolio

Large Cap U.S. Equities

Small Cap U.S. Equities

Developed International Equities

Emerging Markets Equity

Domestic Fixed Income

Market Index
Custom Weighted Blend

S&P 500

MSCI US Prime Market 750
Russell 1000

Russell 1000 Growth
Russell 1000 Value

S&P 600

Russell 2000

Russell 2000 Growth
Russell 2000 Value

MSCI EAFE

MSCI EAFE Growth
MSCI EAFE Value
MSCI Emerging Markets

Lehman Aggregate
Lehman Intermediate Aggregate

Benchmarks (This table identifies the benchmarks available for comparative performance.)

Callan Style Database
Large Cap Broad
Large Cap Growth
Large Cap Value

Small Cap Broad

Small Cap Growth
Small Cap Value

Core International Equity

Emerging Markets Equity

Core Fixed Income



Manager Structure History

Current Managers

INTECH Large Cap Growth
Rainier Investment Managemeni
Vanguard Large-Cap Index Fund
AllianceBernstein

Great Lake Advisors

TAMRO Capital Parters

Eagle Asset Management

Artisan International Fund
Harbor International Fund

SSgA Emerging Markets Fund
Vanguard Total Bond Market Index
Western Asset Core Plus Bond
Richmond Capital Management
Atlantic Asset Management

Terminated Managers/Funds

Merrill Lynch Equity

Merrill Lynch Fixed Income

Vanguard Emerging Markets VIPER/ETF
Vanguard Developed Markets Index Fund
Vanguard Small-Cap Index Fund

*Custom Benchmarks for Total Fund

Asset Class

Large Cap Growth
Large Cap Growth
Large Cap

Large Cap Value
Large Cap Value
Small Cap Broad
Small Cap Broad
International Equity
International Equity
Emerging Markets
Fixed Income
Fixed Income

Domestic Fixed Income
Domestic Fixed Income

Asset Class

Large Cap

Fixed Income
Emerging Markets
International Equity
Small Cap

Inception

04/30/2006
05/09/2006
08/04/2005
05/24/2006
05/09/2006
08/31/2006
08/31/2006
06/22/2006
06/22/2006
06/22/2006
08/04/2005
09/29/2006

Inception

09/30/2000
09/30/2000
08/04/2005
08/04/2005
08/04/2005

10/03/2006
10/03/2006

Termination
07/27/2005
07/27/2005
06/20/2006
06/15/2006
08/29/2006

Style Target = 30% CAI MF: Lg Cap Broad Style; 5% CAI MF: Sm Cap Broad Style;
12% CAI MF: Intl Core Equity Style; 3% CAI MF: Emerging Markets Style; 45% CAI
MF: Core Bond Style; 5% CAIL: Cash Management: CAI: Small Cap Broad

Index Target = 30% MSCI U.S. Prime Market 750, 5% MSCI U.S. Small Cap 1750;
12% MSCI EAFE; 3% MSCI Emerging Markets, 45% LB Aggregate; 5% 90-day T-Bill



Quarterly Performance Report Disclosure/Account Reviews (INST)

Important Disclosure Information

This report has been prepared by Capital Advisory Group (CapGroup) using information
from sources that include the following: the computer software, investment manager and
fund sponsor databases of Callan Associates, Inc.; the fund custodian(s); investment
manager(s); third party data vendors; the client; and other outside sources as directed by
the client. Account information has been compiled solely by CapGroup and has not been
independently verified. CapGroup assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or
completeness of the information provided, or methodologies employed by any providers
external to CapGroup.

In reviewing this report, it should be noted that past performance may not be indicative of
future results. The individual account performance information contained in this report
reflects the reinvestment of dividends, and is net of applicable transaction fees and
mutual fund expenses, but not custody fees, investment manager fees and the investment
advisory fees charged to the Account by CapGroup. Historical performance results for
investment indices and/or categories have been provided for general comparison purposes
only, and generally do not reflect the deduction of transaction and/or custodial charges, or
the deduction of an investment management fee, the incurrence of which would have the
effect of decreasing historical performance results. Comparative performance information
for manager universes has been provided by Callan Associates, Inc. and does not reflect
the deduction of investment manager fees, the incurrence of which would have the effect
of decreasing the historical returns for the respective universes. It should not be assumed
that your account holdings correspond directly to any comparative indices or manager
universes. A copy of our current written disclosure statement discussing our advisory
services and fees continues to remain available for your review upon request.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

~ The Audit Committee
Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program
Richmond, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of the Virginia Birth-Related Neurological
Injury Compensation Program (the “Program”) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, which
collectively comprise the Program’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Program’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Program as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 15, 2006
on our consideration of the Program’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and other matters. The purpose of that
- report is to describe the scope of testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our
audits.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 10 and other required supplementary
information on pages 22 through 24 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit this
information and express no opinion on it.



Our audit was made for the purpose of forming our opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The schedule of general and administrative expenses is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

LI«MA?/‘ W*—‘.W,U—P

Richmond, Virginia
March 15, 2006



Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Virginia Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program (the Program)
annual financial report represents our discussion and analysis of the Program’s financial performance
during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005. Please read it in conjunction with the
Program’s financial statements and accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e During 2005 the Board of Directors (the Board) made several significant decisions designed
to improve the overall investment strategy and the financial position of the Program. They
are described as follows:

o After a detailed review of response for proposals and a recommendation from the
Investment Committee, the Board employed CapGroup of Richmond as the
Program’s investment consultant.

o The Board approved a comprehensive Investment Policy Statement (IPS) researched
and prepared by CapGroup.

o After a detailed review of response for proposals and a recommendation by
CapGroup and the Investment Committee, the Board approved SunTrust Bank as the
new custodian of the Programs® investment funds.

.o Investment funds were transferred from Merrill Lynch to SunTrust Bank in August
and invested in various Vanguard Index Funds.

e The Board appointed the first Audit Committee to oversee annual audit activities.

e The funding study authorized by House Joint Resolution 646 in the 2005 General Assembly
was completed, published and assigned a house document number (HD11). This
comprehensive report provides historical and current status information as well as alternatives
for decreasing the deficit. The latter portion was developed in conjunction with Pinnacle
Actuarial Services of Bloomington, IL, chosen for their extensive experience with patient
compensation programs.

e The revenue from fees and assessments increased by $1,527,396 or (8%) in 2005. Fees
assessed from participating physicians increased $131,265 or (6%), participating hospitals
increased $22,541 or (1%), insurance companies increased $1,365,292 or (14%) and
mandated physicians fees increased $8,298 or (0.2%). (An explanation of significant
variances is included later in this report).

o The revenue from fees and assessments increased by $1,968,000 or (12%) in 2004. Fees
assessed from participating physicians increased $350,000 or (19%), participating hospitals
increased $373,000 or (16%), insurance companies increased $955,000 or (11%) and
mandated physicians fees increased $288,000 or (9%).

s The Program’s total net assets decreased by $26.0 million and $22.7 million in 2005 and
2004 respectively primarily due to the increase in provision for claims.

e In 2005 the Program provided $5,500,000 in nursing care, $198,000 in therapy, $695,000 for
21 handicapped accessible vans, $937,000 for housing benefits, $239,000 for durable medical
equipment and technology, $64,000 for hospitals and physician visits, and $351,000 for
claimant legal fees.

s The average cost per active claimant in 2005 and 2004 was approximately $104,000 and
$82,000 respectively.
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o According to the September 2005 Actuarial Report, forecasts of future claim payments
increased $13.5 million due to the revision in the mortality table extending the life
expectancies of claimants.

e As of December 31, 2005 there were a total of 536 participating physicians, up 28 from 508
physicians in 2004, Participating Hospitals decreased by 1 from 33 in 2004 to 32 in 2005.

e At the close of 2005 the Program has a total of 110 admitted claimants, 19 of which are
deceased. Thirteen claimants were admitted including 2 that were deceased prior to
admission. In addition, two other claimants became deceased during 2005. Fourteen
claimants were pending as of December 31, 2005. See chart below.

Total Admitted, Deceased and Active Claimants

Total 2004 2005 Total
01/01/2004 Activity Activity 12/31/05

Admitted 87 10 13 110
Deceased 14 1 4 19
Active 73 01

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of this annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and
analysis (this section), the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements, and
" other supplemental information.

For the fiscal year ending December 2003 and prior fiscal years, the Program’s financial statements
were prepared according to recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its’
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 117, Financial Statements for Not for Profits
Organizations. After a study of the Program’s organizational structure, management determined that
the Program’s financial statements should be presented in accordance with GAAP applicable to
enterprise funds of local government units. This change was adopted January 1, 2004. This change in
basis of accounting resulted in a change in reporting formats and had no significant effect on assets,
net assets or changes in net assets reported for the year ending December 2004,
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net Assets:

The following table reflects the condensed Net Assets of the Program:

Table 1
Net Assets
As of December 31, 2005 ,2004, and 2003
(In millions)
2005 2004 2003
Current Assets 3 10.7 § 123 § 243
Non current Assets 155.8 134.6 103.7
Total Assets 166.5 146.9 128.0
Current Liabilities 20.5 173 16.8
Unpaid Claims Reserve
Admitted Claims 175.9 139.0 122.9
Incurred but not reported claims 95.3 89.8 64.8
Total Unpaid Claims Reserve 271.2 228.8 187.7
Total Liabilities 291.7 246.1 204.5
Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) (125.2) (99.2) (76.5)
Total Net assets 3 1232y § (992) § (76.3)

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the total assets of the Program were $166.5 and $146.9 million,
respectively; total liabilities were $291.7 and $246.1 million, respectively, while combined net assets
were negative $125.2 and $99.2 million, respectively. Net assets are negative due to the fact that the
amount of unpaid claims reserve exceeds total non current assets set aside to pay for future claims.

The decrease in current assets from 2004 of $12.3 million to 2005 of $10.7 million is insignificant
and the amount held in current assets (cash & cash equivalents) is in compliance with the Investment
Policy Statement (IPS). The $21.2 million increase in non current assets from $134.6 million in
2004 to $155.8 million in 2005 consists primarily of $6.0 million in investment income and $16.0
million in assessments deposited and invested.

Current liabilities exceed current assets by $9.8 million in 2005. Current assets are comprised of cash
and cash equivalents while current liabilities consist primarily of deferred revenue. According to the
IPS the target allocation for cash is around 5% and current assets are in compliance. As revenue is
received it is invested on a monthly basis with approximately $1 million held in liquid cash
equivalents to meet the short-term needs of the fund.

The total unpaid claims reserve for December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $271.2 and $228.8 million
respectively. This represents the estimated cost for claimants currently admitted into the Program and
an estimated number of not yet admitted claimants (incurred but not reported, IBNR) with birth dates
prior to fiscal year-end that will be admitted to the Program subsequent to fiscal year-end. This
reserve is based on a mandated biannual actuarial study. A portion of the admitted claims and the
incurred but not reported claims liability remains unfunded.
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Comparison of IBNR to Net Assets

. 2005 2004 2003
Incurred but not reported claims $ 953 $§ 898 $§ 64.8
Total Net Assets (125.2) (99.2) (76.9)

Unfunded Portion of Admitted Claims $ (299) § (04 $ (IZ1)

The above chart shows the comparison of the IBNR claims to the deficit in the total net assets from
2003 to 2005. From 2003 to 2004 there is a reduction in the amount of the unfunded portion of the
admitted claims of and $2.7 million. If IBNR was not included in the Statement of Net Assets the
asset position related to the liabilities improves each year. Up to 2004 the revenues are covering
more of the admitted claims but the IBNR grew at a much greater rate.

In 2005 the unfunded portion of admitted claims increases $20.5 million. This is due to a significant
increase in the actuarial estimate of future expenses for both admitted and IBNR claims. This increase
is attributable to several changes in assumptions made by the actuaries. The most significant is the
revision of the mortality table, increasing the life expectancies of the claimants in the program and
increasing the estimate of future payments by $13.5 million. In addition the methodology for
projecting non-claimant administrative expenses changed as well as the method for calculating the
present value amount for lost wages for group C claimants, those born but not yet admitted to the
fund. The forecast for lifetime expenses for Group C Claimants increased 12% from $1.76 million in
2004 to $1.97 million in 2005 becanse of the increase in actual nursing cost in 2004. The forecast for
lifetime nursing expenses rose 15% from $1.1 million in 2004 to 1.4 million in 2005.

Accounts payable as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 is $1,050,000 and $691,000 respectively,
showing an increase of $359,000.  The majority of the accounts payable are nursing expense and
payments for several large renovation projects that were paid in January and February 2006.

In addition, claimant expenses increased $2,600,000 from $6,900,000 in 2004 to $9,500,000 in 2005.
This increase was due, in part, to ten new claimants admitted in 2004 as well as thirteen in 2005
increasing both the number and amounts of invoices. Nursing expenses alone increased $1,100,000
from 2004 to 2005 primarily due to an existing demand that had not been supplied by the nursing
community previously and to a lesser extent a 5% increase in some fees. Several large renovation
projects as well as several large payments for claimants’ legal fees contributed to the increase.
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Changes in Net Assets:
The following chart shows the revenue and expenses for the current fiscal year:

Table 2

Changes in Net Assets
as of December 31, 2005 ,2004, and 2003
(in millions)
2005 2004 2003

Revenues :
Fees and Assessments b 199 § 183 § 164
Net Investment Income 6.1 7.1 9.6
Other - - 0.1

Total Revenues 26.0 254 26.1
Expenses
Provision for claims 519 48.0 20.6
General and administrtation 0.1 0.1 0.1

Total Liabilities 52.0 48.1 20.7

Change in net assets (26.0) (22.7) 54

Beginning net assets (deficit) (99.2) (76.5) (81.9)

Ending net assets (deficit) (125. . .

REVENUES

Revenues consist of legislatively established assessments placed on participating and non-
participating physicians, hospitals, and insurance companies and also investment income. For the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, revenues totaled $26.0 and $25.4 million,
respectively.

Assessments for 2005 for participating and non-participating physicians were $5,100 and $260
respectively. Participating Hospitals are assessed a fee of $50 per live birth for the prior year, as
reported by the Department of Health, not to exceed $160,000. In 2005 liability insurers paid one
quarter of one percent on the direct premiums written during the prior year.

The insurance fees collected from liability insurers increased 14% from $9.9 million in 2004 to $11.3
million in 2005. This increase can be attributed to an increase in the underlying premiums in Virginia
upon which the assessments are calculated. The 2004 assessment was based on premiums of
approximately $3.7 billion and 2005 on premiums of approximately $4.3 billion. Changes in
premiums may be due to increase in rates, payrolls, general insurance and market conditions.

In 2004 the General Assembly authorized increases in future years assessments according to the
following chart, however the 2005 actuarial report states that these increases will not be enough to
restore the fund to actuarial soundness.
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NOT-

Year | Participating| Participating Hospital
2005 & 5,100.00 | % 260.00 |$30/1ive birth not to exceed $160,000 |
2006 $ 5,200.00 | $ 270.00 |$50/live birth not to exceed $170,000
20071 $ 5,300.00} % 280.00 [$50/live birth not to exceed $180,000
2008| $ 5,400.00 | $ 290.00 |$50/live birth not to exceed $190,000
2009] $ 5,500.00 | $ 300.00 |$50/live birth not to exceed $200,000

Net investment income decreased $1.0 million from 2004 to 2005 due to normal market fluctuations.
In 2005 the Board made the decision to employ SunTrust Bank as custodian of the Program’s funds,

replacing Merrill Lynch. In August 2005, Merrill Lynch liquidated the investments and transferred
them to SunTrust.

EXPENSES

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 expenditures totaled $52.0 million and $48.1
million respectively. Expenses are comprised of general administrative and claims related expenses,
the latter of which reflects both the increases in claims reserve and the claims paid during the year.

General administrative expenses include the portion of salaries, rent, cost of office equipment, and all
other expenses not directly related to claims. Administrative expenses were 9.5% and 9.8% of the
total expenses (administrative plus claimant) for 2005 and 2004 respectively. Of the total
administrative expenses of $916,000 in 2005 approximately $733,000 or 80% is related to claims
according to program management and $183,000 is related to program administration. In 2004 80%
or $546,000 of a total of $683,000 in Administrative expenses was related to claims and $137 000
related to program administration.

Total administrative expenses amounted to $916,000 and $683,000 in 2005 and 2004, respectively,
primarily due to an increase in professional services and payroll expenses. The Board employed
several medical and financial consultants (consultant and actuary) to complete the Funding Study and
CapGroup to act as the Programs investment advisors. The Program also sought legal advice and
research as to how to administer the wage benefit as claimants reach age 18. A professional employer
organization was hired to provide human resource and payroll services. During 2005 two permanent
employees were added to the staff, one position of which was previously filled by a temporary
professional.

Provision for claims includes the portion of general administration expenses related to claims and
actual and future expenses related to claims. Claimant expenses include nursing, therapy, physician
and hospital visits, prescriptions, housing, transportation, and durable medical equipment. Provision
for claims increased from $48.0 million in 2004 to $51.9 million in 2005 primarily due to the changes

in the assumptions reflected in the actuarial study completed and published in September 2005 and
discussed previously in this report.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets consist of computer equipment, office equipment and automobiles. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the related assets.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

On July 1, 2003 legislation became effective that has the potential to significantly increase the costs
of the Program but not increase revenues. These changes may result in increased administrative
expenses, increased number of claimants, and a new category of claimants eligible for awards up to
$100,000. A summary of the legislation is as follows;

o The Office of the Attorney General (OAG) shall provide requested legal services to the
Program. The Program shall compensate the OAG for the provision of such legal services.

e Every hospital shall provide for each infant hospitalized in neonatal intensive care an
informational brochure prepared and approved by the board of directors of the Program.

o The Workers’ Compensation Commission (The Commission) may make an award, at its
discretion, for compensation for attorney’s fees for unsuccessful claims. Anyome bomn
between July 1, 2003 and June 30, 2004 that submits a petition and is denied can receive

- -attorney’s fees. This decision was repealed effective July 1, 2004.

e If The Commission determines an infant has sustained a birth related injury and was
delivered by a participating physician or born in a participating hospital, and the infant dies
‘within 180 days, the Commission may make an award up to $100,000 to the infant’s family.

As of December 31, 2005 there were no petitions submitted or awards granted for compensation for
attorney’s fees for unsuccessful claims or for any infants deceased within 180 days of birth.

The above legislation has a significant effect on the increase in provision for insured events of prior
years. In 2004 the increase in provision for insured events of prior years equals $14.5 million. This
provision is a combination of a decrease of $27.4 million due to the reduction in estimated cost per
claim as determined by the actuaries and an increase in the provision of $41.9 million due to the
legislative changes. The increase in the claims reserve in 2004 is primarily due to the legislative
changes.

The $42.4 million increase in claims reserve in 2005 is primarily due to the changes in assumptions
made by the actuaries especially the change in the mortality table as discussed earlier. It is important
to note that there are significant uncertainties related to the estimates of future claim payments.
Forecasts are highly sensitive to changes in assumptions like inflation, interest rates and mortality.
There are few claimants in the program (110 admitted as of 2005), none over the age of 16 and only
68 in the program three years or more as of 2004. There is also considerable variability in the actual
payment made to individual claimants. Nursing expenses are the largest payment category and any
changes in cost or utilization of nursing services would have a major impact on findings. Legislative
impact is uncertain and estimates will change as actual expenses and claimant’s come into the
program however there is no way to determine which are attributable to legislative changes.
Forecasts of the number of eligible claimants are also unsure due to the length of time from birth to
application to the program, number of participating doctors and hospitals, and legislative changes.
An increase in the number of eligible claimants will have a direct effect on the number admitted and
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will increase the cost of the program. These factors have a volatile effect on the estimate of the claims
reserve.

The 2005 Actuarial report states that the Program is not in any immediate danger of defaulting on the
payment of benefits; although not actuarially sound, it has sufficient assets to pay benefits for about
18 years. The report explains that if the Program collects the required assessments and if the level of
participation of physicians and hospitals remains at the 2005 level, the fund will be able to continue to
make claim payments for all claimants, including those admitted after December 31, 2004 (even if
those claimants are born after December 31, 2004), for approximately the next 18 years. This time
span has decreased from the 20 years cited in the 2004 report due to the increase in the forecasted
lifetime costs per claimant, most of which is nursing. This is partially offset by legislative increases
to assessment income and higher than expected forecasted assessment income from insurance
companies.

As previously mentioned in this report the Board has made decisions during 2005 that impact the
investment of the Program’s funds. Due to the hiring of CapGroup as investment advisor the
Program now has a comprehensive IPS, selected a new investment custodian (SunTrust Bank) and
has a diversified portfolio of index funds. In 2006 the Board plans to incorporate active managers
into the investment portfolio to maximize investment income and still maintain acceptable levels of
risk. The Board believes these actions together with the guidance from CapGroup will continue to
improve the investment strategy and financial position of the program, which is an important factor in
reducing the actuarial deficit.

CONTACTING THE PROGRAM’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide users (e.g. citizens, taxpayers, claimant families, service
providers and creditors) with a general overview of the Program’s finances and to demonstrate the
Program’s accountability for the funds it receives. Questions concerning this report or requests for
additional information should be directed to the Deputy Director, 9100 Arboretum Pkwy. Suite 365,
Richmond, VA 23236, 804-330-2471 or visit our website at http://www.vabirthinjury.com
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Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued interest
Total current assets

Investments

Real estate held in trust

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Security deposits
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

Unpaid claims reserve
Admitted claims
Incurred but not reported claims
Total unpaid claims reserve

Total liabilities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net assets

See notes to financial statements.

Statements of Net Assets

Assets

Liabilities

Net assets
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December 31,

2005 2004

$ 10,332,288 $ 11,473,661
380,655 789,558
10,712,943 12,263,219
150,614,312 129,516,978
5,142,281 5,052,551
19,755 26,887

3,009 3,009
155,779,357 134,599,425
166,492,300 146,862,644
1,051,682 691,137
54,069 54,069
19,347,906 16,474,887
20,453,657 17,220,093
175,900,000 139,000,000
95,300,000 89,800,000
271,200,000 228,800,000
291,653,657 246,020,093
19,755 26,887
(125,181,112) (99,184,336)
§ (125,161,357) 8  (99,157,449)
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Operating revenues
Participating hospitals
Participating doctors
Mandated physician fees
Insurance fees
Other
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Provision for claims
General and administration
Total operating expenses

Operating loss
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Net investment income
Gain (loss) on sale of real estate
Revaluation of real estate
Loss on sale of assets

Net nonoperating revenue

Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year

Net assets (deficit) at end of year

See notes to financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
2,753,450 2,730,909
2,342,449 2,211,184
3,444,676 3,436,378

11,314,150 9,948,858

- 100
19,854,725 18,327,429
51,853,223 47,963,625

183,164 136,569
52,036,387 48,100,194
(32,181,662) (29,772,765)
6,088,153 7,195,687
- 149,016
89,730 (226,082)
(129) (606)
6,177,754 7,118,015
(26,003,908) (22,654,750)
(99,157,449) (76,502,699)

(125,161,357)

$  (99,157,449)
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Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from hospitals
Receipts from participating doctors
Mandated physician fee receipts
Receipts from insurance companies
Other receipts
Payments on behalf of claimants
Payments to suppliers of goods and services
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows used in capital and related financing activities

Purchase of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from sale and maturity of investment securitites

Earnings on investment securities
Proceeds from sale of real estate investment properties
Net cash used in investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year

End of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided
by operating activities: :
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Claims reserve
Net cash provided by operating activities

Nonecash investing activities
Net appreciation in fair value of investment securities

See notes fo financial staternents.
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Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
2,934,100 2,519,709
2,986,463 2,057,253
3,646,854 3,397,988

13,160,327 10,210,638

- 100

(8,360,023) (5,746,164)

(446,780) (348,210)
(458,511) (323,111)
13,462,430 11,768,203
(3,525) (12,397)
(190,504,436) (62,806,093)
169,844,896 33,624,370
6,059,262 4,063,080
- 1,097,000
(14,600,278) (24,021,643)

(1,141,373) (12,265,837)

11,473,661 23,739,498

10,332,288 11,473,661

(32,181,662) (29,772,765)
10,528 11,536
360,545 571,183

- (10)

2,873,019 (141,741)
42,400,000 41,100,000

13,462,430 11,768,203
1,820,061 20,631
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Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Note 1 — Summary of significant accounting policies

Nature of organization — The Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program (the
“Program™) was established under the Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Act
(1987,c.540). The Program is a related organization for which the elected officials of the Commonwealth
of Virginia are accountable as they appoint a voting majority of the board. The Act creates a
compensation program that assures lifetime care of infants with severe neurological injuries. The
Program is funded through annual assessments of participating physicians and participating hospitals.
Liability insurers and non-participating physicians contribute to the fund, if necessary, based upon actual
experience of the fund. The Program receives no federal government funding.

Basis of accounting — The Program operates as an insurance enterprise fund subject to Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10 (GASB 10), “dccounting and Financial Reporting for
Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues,” Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 30 (GASB 30), "Risk Financing Omnibus — An Amendment to GASE Statement No. 10," and
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 60 (FAS 60), “Accounting and Reporting for
Insurance Enterprises.”

The financial statements of the enterprise fund are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, using the
economic resources measurement focus. Under this method of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred without regard to receipt or disbursement
of cash. Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and collecting fees in
connection with the proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, “Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary
Fund Accounting,” proprietary fund types may follow all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as
only those Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and predecessor APB
Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989. Under paragraph 7
of GASB Statement No. 20, the Program has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after
November 30, 1989.

Use of estimates — The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from these estimates.

Cash equivalents — For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-
term, highly liquid investments that are both (a) readily convertible to known amounts of cash and (b) so
near maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.
Generally, the Program considers investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Investments - The Program’s investments consist of various index mutual funds with underlying
investments consisting of large and small cap equities, foreign equities, and bonds, and are reported at fair
value based on quoted market prices. The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent
appraisals. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on their trade date.

14
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Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Note 1 — Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Capital assets — Capital assets with a cost of $1,000 or more (threshold implemented in fiscal year 2004)
are recorded at cost. The costs of major improvements are capitalized while the cost of maintenance and
repairs, which do not improve or extend the life of an asset, are expensed. Depreciation is provided over
the assets’ estimated useful lives of three to seven years using the straight-line method.

Unearned revenue — Unearned revenue represents amounts for which revenue recognition criteria have not
been met. It is the Program’s policy to recognize mandated assessments, participating doctor and hospital
fees, and insurance fees in the period in which the assessment or coverage is related.

Estimated liability for unpaid claims — The liability for unpaid claims represents management’s estimate,
developed in conjunction with the assistance of the Program’s actuary, of the Program’s discounted
estimated cost of payments for both claimants admitted to the Program and an estimated number of not-yet-
admitted claimants with birth dates prior to the date of the statement of net assets that will be admitted to
the Program subsequent to the date of the net assets. Changes in estimates of such costs are recogmzed n
results of operations in the period in which the changes in estimate are made.

Management believes the estimate of the discounted liability for unpaid claims is adequate. The
development of liabilities for future benefit requires management to make estimate and assumptions
regarding mortality, morbidity, lapse, expense, and investment experience. Such estimates are primarily
based on historical experience and future expectations of these assumptions. The Program’s actual incurred
losses may vary significantly from the estimated amount included in the Program’s financial statements.
Management monitors actual experience and, if circumstances warrant, revises its assumptions and the
related future policy benefit estimates.

Reclassifications — Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for comparative purposes to
conform to the current year presentation.

Note 2 ~ Deposits and investments

The Program’s deposit and investment portfolio consists of the following at December 31:

2005 2004
Cash and depos1ts: »
Cash on hand $ 240 § 777
Deposits with financial institutions - demand deposits 899,653 75,019
Investments:
Deposits with financial institutions - money market accounts 9,432,395 11,397,865
Mutual funds:
Small cap index 7,122,494 -
Large cap index : 49,190,198 -
International emerging markets index 4,836,125 -
International developed markets index 19,605,871 -
Bond index 69,859,624 -
US Government obligations - 67,725,530
Corporate bonds - 22,021,635
Equity securities - 39,769,813

$ 160,946,600 ~§ 140,990,639
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Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Note 2 — Deposits and investments (continued)

Deposits — All cash of the Program is maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the
Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. Seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered by
federal depository insurance.

Investments — In accordance with the Virginia Birth-Related Injury Compensation Act, Section 38.2-
5016 of the Code of Virginia, the Board of Directors is given the authority to invest the Program’s funds
in a careful and prudent manner at the advice of investment advisors, so long as the advisors are approved
by the chief investment officer of the Virginia Retirement System.

Credit risk: The Program manages the credit quality of its investment portfolio by limiting its fixed
income portfolio having ratings of less than single “A” quality to 20%. The Program’s rated debt
investments at December 31, 2005 are as follows:

Rating Market value
Ratedvmoney market accounts AA $ 9,072,525
Unrated money market accounts N/A 359,870
Total % . 9,432.395
Mutual fund - bond index fund AAI/AA2 $ 69,859,624

Interest rate risk: The underlying investments of the above bond index mutual fund have a stated average
weighted maturity of 7.2 years. The Program does not have a formal investment policy that limits

investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising form increasing
interest rates. -

Foreign currency risk: The Program manages its risk associated with foreign currency fluctuations by
limiting its investments in international developed and emerging index funds to 20% of its overall
portfolio. The Program’s investments subjected to foreign currency risk at December 31, 2005 are as
follows:

Fund description =~ Market value

Mutual funds:
International emerging markets exchange-traded fund 1 $ 4,836,125
International developed markets index fund 2) 19,605,871
Total S 24,441,996

(1) This fund invests in common stock of emerging markets, mirroring the MSCI Select Emerging
Markets Index. This index includes approximately 660 common stocks of companies located in
emerging markets around the world, with the largest markets covered in the index being South Korea,
Taiwan, Brazil, South Africa, and China, making up 20%, 15%, 12%, 11%, and 8% of the index’s
investments, respectively. The remaining 33% of the index is invested in thirteen other countries.
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Note 2 — Deposits and investments (continued)

(2) 67% of this fund is invested in the European Stock Index Fund, which invests in common stocks
included in the MSCI Europe Index. The MSCI Europe Index consists of approximately 590
common stocks of companies located in sixteen European countries, including the United Kingdom
(37%), France (14%), Switzerland (10%) and Germany (10%). Twelve other countries comprise the
remaining 29%. The remaining 33% of this fund is invested in the Pacific Stock Index Fund, which
invests in commons stocks included in the MSCI Pacific Index. The MSCI Pacific Index consists of
approximately 540 common stocks of companies located in the Pacific Basin. The Index is
dominated by the Japanese stock market which represents 75% of the funds holdings with the
remaining 25% of the holdings being aflocated among four other countries.

The Program’s return on investments for years ending December 31, 2005 and 2004 is summarized as
follows:

2005 2004

Interest income $ 2,799,652 $ 3,708,135
Dividend income 3,108,910 892,961
Realized gain (loss) on investments (1,382,267) 2,867,614
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 1,820,061 20,631
Investment fees (189,293) (210,632)
Fiduciary fees (68,910) (83,022)

Net investment income 3 6,088,153 $ 7,195,687

The calculation of realized gains and losses is independent of the calculation of the net appreciation in fair
value of investments; therefore, realized gains and losses in 2005 and 2004 include unrealized gains and
losses on those same investments recognized in prior periods as part of the net appreciation or deprecation
in the fair value of investments.

Note 3 — Investments in real estate

Under guidelines established by the Board of Directors, the Program could, up until 1999, approve the
purchase or construction of a home for the family claimant subject to certain restrictions. The home is
held in a trust and remains the property of the Program, subject to use by the claimant’s family during the
term of the trust and subject to conditions imposed by the trust agreement. The trust expires upon the
death or institutionalization of the claimant, and stipulates that during occupancy the family is responsible
for the payment of utilities, general maintenance of the home, and certain other similar obligations.

Investment properties are stated at original cost plus the cost of any improvements, but not in excess of

appraised fair values. The carrying value of the real estate investments amounted to $5,142,281 at
December 31, 2005 and $5,052,551 at December 31, 2004.
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Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program
Naotes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
Note 4 — Capital assets

Capital assets at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related changes for the years then ended were as
follows:

January 1, December 31,
2005 Increases Decreases 2005
Computer equipment § 33621 915 @913) § 50,623
Office equipment 33,991 2,610 - 36,601
Automobiles 17,237 - - 17,237
104,849 3,525 (3,913) 104,461
Less accumulated depreciation (77.,962) (10,528) 3,784 (84,706)
Capital assets, net $ 26,887 3 (7,003) b 129) 5 19,755
January 1, December 31,
2004 Increases Decreases 2004
Computer equipment $ 53311 12,397 (11,907) 5 53801
Office equipment 33,811 - - 33,811
Automobiles 17,237 - - 17,237
104,359 12,397 (11,907) 104,849
Less accumulated depreciation (77,727) (11,536) ‘ 11,301 (77,962)
Capital assets, net A § 26,632 861 (606) 5 26,887

Note 5 — Estimated liability for unpaid claims

The estimated liability for unpaid claims is the discounted estimated cost of payments for both claimants
admitted to the Program and an estimated number of not-yet-admitted claimants with birth dates prior to
the date of the statement of net assets that will be admitted to the Program subsequent to the date of the
statement of net assets. This discounted cost represents the amount that would need to be invested, as of
the date of the statement of net assets, to pay the claimant expenses as they become due. The liability is
determined based on an actuarial study, which is mandated to be performed no less frequently than
biennially (done annually for 2005 and 2004). Eligible costs under the Program are costs not otherwise
paid by private insurance or other government programs. Costs include nursing, housing, hospitals and
physicians, physical therapy, vans, medical equipment, prescription drugs, various other incidental items,
loss of earnings, and claim filing expenses.

In general terms, the estimated liability for unpaid claims is determined as follows:

(1) The total number of claimants is estimated (actual number of admitted claimants plus estimate of
the number of not-yet-admitted claimants).
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Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Note 5 — Estimated lability for unpaid claims (continuned)

(2) Future payments, by category of expense paid for each claimant, are forecast. These estimates
are based on the actual payments made by the Program on behalf of the claimants who had been
in the program for three or more years as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 (taking into
consideration each claimant’s insurance coverage and eligibility for Medicaid), as well as
assumptions regarding future cost of inflation and future increases in the utilization of the benefits

and services of the Program.

(3) Projected future payments to each claimant are adjusted to reflect an assumed life expectancy for

each claimant and the time value of money.

The estimated liability for unpaid claims is forecast based on actual information through the prior fiscal
year. Actuarial assumptions represent estimates that are critical to reported operations. The assumptions
used in the forecast are reasonable and management believes the indicated liability is adequate.

Significant actuarial assumptions for each fiscal year include:
2005

2004

Rate of claims inflation (varies based
on category of expense) . 1.00% - 5.35%

Investment earnings / discount rate 6.55%

Mortality:

Average life expectancy of

claimant at birth 21.2 years
Average life expectancy of

claimant that attains the

age of three 23.4 years
Average life expectancy of

claimant that attains the

age of four Not available

Estimated number of claimants born
on or before December 31, 2004
not yet admitted to the Program.
Estimate is based on review of how
long it takes for claimants to
be admitted to the Program 44 claimants

1.26% - 5.09%

6.43%

19.2 years

21.5 years

21.6 years

47 claimants

The increase in the estimated claims reserve amount is based on projected increases for future claims
payments due to expected increase in number of claimants as a result of House Bill No. 2048 (this bill
provided for certain extended benefits and the payment of certain administrative costs including attorneys
fees), which became effective July 1, 2003. The total number of claimants (admitted claimants and not-

yet-admitted claimants) is estimated to be 157 as of December 31, 2005.

During fiscal year 2004, House Bill No.1407 was enacted, reducing the coverage of additional
administrative costs. This legislature repealed a portion of the previous bill mentioned above and became
effective January 1, 2005. Management estimates that the effect on the estimated claims reserve was a

reduction to the reserve of approximately $28,600,000.
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Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Note 5 — Estimated liability for unpaid claims (continued)

The following represents changes in the aggregate reserves for the Program during the past two years:

2005 2004
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses
at beginning of year $ 228,800,000 $ 187,700,000
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
Provision for insured events of current year 21,652,174 20,733,333
Increase in provision for insured
events of prior years 15,214,649 14,485,462
Total incurred claims and
claim adjustment expenses 36,866,823 35,218,795
Interest 14,986,400 12,744,830
Total claims provision 51,853,223 47,963,625
Payments:
Claims and claim adjustment expenses
attributable to insured events of the
current year - -
Claims and claim adjustment expenses
attributable to insured events of
prior years 9,453,223 6,863,625
Total payments 9,453,223 6,.863,625
Total unpaid claims and claim
adjustment expenses at year end $ 271,200,000 §$ 228,800,000

The total undiscounted unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses amount to $857.7 million and

$723.6 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and represent unaudited estimates.

Note 6 — Employee benefits

The Program pays each employee an amount equal to 23% of his or her salary in lieu of a benefits
package. This additional salary is to be used by the employee to acquire certain benefits, if they so
choose, and is subject to income and payroll taxes. Additional benefits paid by the Program to their
employees amounted to $89,566 and $62,687 for the years ending December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. These benefits are included as salary and benefits expense on the Program’s supplementary

schedule of general and administrative expenses.
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Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Note 7 — Related party transactions

A member of the Program’s Board of Directors is a member of upper management at Carilion Health
System. The Program enters into transactions with various subsidiaries of Carilion Health System during
its normal course of business. During 2005 and 2004, payments for medical services to these subsidiaries
amounted to approximately $331,000 and $361,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2005, there was
approximately $40,000 of accounts payable related to these services from subsidiaries.

Note 8 — Operating lease commitments
The Program leases its office space under an operating lease expiring on February 29, 2008. Rent

expense under this lease amounted to $55,185 and $53,498 for fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The future minimum obligations under this lease are as follows:

2006 $ 56,206
2007 ' 57,616
2008 ' 9,642

5 123,464

The Program leases office equipment on a month-to-month basis. Rent expense for this equipment
amounted to $2,254 and $1,512 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and is included in other
expenses on the supplemental schedule of general and administrative expenses.

Note 9 — Liquidity

The actuarial study performed for the year ended December 31, 2005 determined that the Program was
not actuarially sound. The forecasted information for the year ended December 31, 2005 resulted in a
larger deficit. The increase in the deficit largely is attributed to the change in actuarial assumptions,
including the mortality assumption ($13.5 million increase in future claim payments). However, the
actuarial study did point out that the Program is not in any immediate danger of defaulting on the payment
of benefits and that the Program has sufficient assets to continue to pay for claimants’ benefits.

At the request of the Commonwealth of Virginia, management is evaluating possible solutions for
resolving the deficit over the long-term. Once the evaluation is complete, management will present its
recommendations to the legislature.

Note 10 — Contingencies

Various pending and threatened lawsuits claim eligibility for program benefits. Management believes the

Program’s claims reserves based upon actuarial assumptions are adequate to provide for the ultimate
resolution of these claims.
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Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Note 1 — Claims development information

The table on the preceding pages illustrates how the Program's earned revenue (net of reinsurance) and
investment income compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by re-insurers) and other
expenses assumed by the Program as of the end of each of the previous ten years. The rows of the table
are defined as follows: (1) This line shows the total of each fiscal year's gross earned premiums and
reported investment revenue, amounts of premiums ceded, and reported premiums (net of reinsurance)
and reported investment revenue. (2) This line shows each fiscal year's other operating costs of the
Program including overhead and loss adjustment expenses not allocable to individual claims. (3) This line
shows the Program's gross incurred losses and allocated loss adjustment expense, losses assumed by
reinsurers, and net incurred losses and loss adjustment expense (both paid and accrued) as originally
reported at the end of the year in which the event that triggered coverage occurred (called birth year). (4)
This section of ten rows shows the cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years for each
birth year. (5) This line shows the latest re-estimated amount of losses. assumed by re-insurers for each
birth year. (6) This section of ten rows shows how each birth year's net incurred losses increased or
decreased as of the end of successive years. (This annual re-estimation results from new information
received on known losses, reevaluation of existing information on known losses, and emergence of new
losses not previously known.) (7) This line compares the latest re-estimated net incurred losses amount to
the amount originally established (line 3) and shows whether this latest estimate of losses is greater or less
than originally thought. As data for individual birth years mature, the correlation between original
estimates and re-estimated amounts is commonly used to evaluate the accuracy of net incurred losses
currently recognized in less mature birth years. The columns of the table show data for successive birth
years.
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Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program

Schedules of General and Administrative Expenses

Agdvertising and brochures
Computer services
Depreciation and amortization
Office

Other

Postage and mailing
Professional fees

Rent

Salaries and benefits
Telephone

Less claims administration (allocations)

Unallocated expenses
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2005 2004

5,249 11,980
13,226 12,758
10,528 11,536
7,771 6,785
59,069 34,541,
9,909 49,735
286,744 137,535
55,185 53,498
458,512 352,770
9,625 11,709
915,818 682,847
732,654 546,278
183,164 136,569




CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors® Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Audit Committee
Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program
Richmeond, Virginia

We have audited the financial statements of Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation
Program (the “Program™) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 15, 2006. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Program’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts
that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matters involving the internal control over financial report and its operation that we consider to
be material weaknesses.

We did note other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of the Program in a separate letter dated March 15, 2006.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Program’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, management, and
others within the Program, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Mwb' Wv—t-!uu._.._, P

Richmond, Virginia
March 15, 2006



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

